
Workforce Panel 
Dear Member,

You are invited to attend the meeting of the Workforce Panel to be held as follows for 
the transaction of the business indicated.
Miranda Carruthers-Watt 
Proper Officer

DATE: Tuesday, 27 November 2018

TIME: 12.00 pm

VENUE: Salford Suite, Salford Civic Centre, Chorley Road, Swinton

In accordance with ‘The Openness of Local Government Bodies Regulations 
2014,’ the press and public have the right to film, video, photograph or record 
this meeting. 

AGENDA

1  Apologies for Absence 

2  Declarations of Interest 

3  Minutes of the Meeting Held on 3 September 2018 (Pages 1 - 2)

4  Customer Services Redesign (Pages 3 - 68)

5  Employer Supported Volunteering (Pages 69 - 80)

6  Any Other Business 

Contact Officer: Tel No: 793 3316
Carol.eddleston E-Mail: carol.eddleston@salford.gov.uk

Public Document Pack



This page is intentionally left blank



1 | P a g e

WORKFORCE PANEL

Held on Monday 3 September 2018

Meeting started: 1:15 p.m.
Meeting ended:  1:50 p.m.

PRESENT: Councillor John Ferguson – Lead Member for Workforce and Industrial 
Relations – in the chair

Councillors Paula Boshell, Bill Hinds, Tracy Kelly and Gina Reynolds 

OFFICERS: Sam Betts Assistant Director HR & OD
Carol Eddleston Senior Democratic Services Advisor
Jim Taylor Chief Executive

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf the City Mayor Paul Dennett, 
Councillors Derek Antrobus and John Merry and Miranda Carruthers-Watt, City 
Solicitor.

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

There were no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES OF PROCEEDINGS

The minutes of the meeting held on 24 July 2018 were approved as a correct record.

4. INTERIM LEADERSHIP ARRANGEMENTS PUBLIC HEALTH

The Chief Executive presented a report which set out proposed interim arrangements 
for covering the leadership and statutory responsibilities of the Director of Public 
Health until March 2019. The proposals were intended to ensure that the Council 
would retain all responsibility for the Public Health function, ensuring the appropriate 
exercise of the Council’s Public Health duties and clear accountability within the 
Council.

It was proposed that the functions of the Director of Public Health would be exercised 
between the two Public Health Consultants, and one would be named as the 
statutory officer reporting directly to the Chief Executive.  Both would receive an 
honorarium in recognition of the associated additional duties, responsibilities and 
accountability. 

It was proposed that the Chief Accountable Officer (CAO) of Salford Clinical 
Commissioning Group (CCG) would provide interim strategic system leadership for 
population health together with leadership for the Public Health & Strategy function 
and would sit as a member of the Council’s Corporate Management Team. This 
matter was also subject to the agreement of the CCG Governing Body.

The interim arrangements would allow the Council time to identify what it wanted to 
see in terms of a substantive appointment to the Director of Public Health function 
beyond 31 March next year. 

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2 | P a g e

The Chief Executive and the Assistant Director HR & OD responded to a number of 
questions and observations from members of the panel:-

Potential conflict of interest – the Chief Executive was reassured by the advice he 
had received from HR and Legal Services that the proposals in relation to the CCG 
CAO would not result in a conflict of interest with his existing role within the CCG and 
Integrated Health, Wellbeing and Care Commissioning Joint Committee (ICJC).

Duty to hold partners to account, scrutinise & provide challenge – the Chief Executive 
confirmed that the internal officer arrangements would ensure that accountability, 
scrutiny and robust challenge of relevant partners would continue.

Concerns about workload of CAO whilst also providing support to Trafford Council  - 
the CAO was currently supporting Trafford Council one day per week and the 
substantive post had recently been advertised. The arrangements proposed for 
Salford City Council would involve the CAO joining the Corporate Management Team 
providing a mutually beneficial opportunity for closer working.

Actual responsibilities of the CAO under the proposed arrangements – the CAO 
would provide an overview of population health without the statutory elements of the 
Director of Public Health function.

Savings – the savings identified were likely to be one-off in nature and had not been 
a determining factor in the proposals and would result in a saving being able to be 
put back into the budget for the remainder of the current financial year. This would be 
made clear in relevant comms.

Longer term recruitment - the temporary arrangements would allow the Council an 
opportunity to take time to consider its longer term requirements. 

Councillor Boshell asked for it to be noted that she was supportive of the internal 
officer arrangements but was not able to support the proposals in relation to the CAO 
due to her concerns about a conflict of interest with his roles in the CCG and 
ICJC.

RESOLVED: THAT,

(1) the proposed interim arrangements for covering the remit of the vacant Director of 
Public Health post until 31 March 2019, including the reallocation of responsibilities 
for the public health and strategy and policy functions as outlined in the report, be 
approved;

(2) responsibility be delegated to the Chief Executive, in consultation with the Lead 
Member for Adult Services, Health and Wellbeing, to appoint one of the Public Health 
Consultants as the statutory officer, and

(3) the payment of honoraria in recognition of additional duties, responsibilities and 
accountability be noted.

Page 2



Page | 1 
 

 Part 1 ITEM NO. 

 

 
 

REPORT OF THE DIRECTOR OF SERVICE REFORM 
 

TO 
 

WORKFORCE PANEL 
 

ON 27th November 2018 

 
 
TITLE:  Customer Services Redesign  

 
 
1.0   RECOMMENDATIONS: 
 
1.1 The Workforce Panel approves the proposed changes to the  Customer 

Services division within the Service Reform Directorate.  
 
2.0   EXECUTIVE SUMMARY: 

 
2.1 The proposed re-design will deliver a service that is fit for purpose to 

meet the needs of the people of Salford and most importantly will 
increase the collection rates for both council tax and business rates 
which will protect front line services and jobs from further cuts.  
 
Key Points: 

 There will be a financial increase to 31 employees. 

 It creates 4 new apprenticeship roles. 

 New career pathways underpinned by the apprenticeship levy for 20 
people in cohort 1. 

 Places a number of people in permanent positions that have been 
acting up for long periods of time. 

 Deliver a projected increase in in-year collection for 2019/20 
equivalent to £1.8m.  

 
2.3    This report provides details of the steps taken to develop the new model 

and the outcome of the formal consultation received from the workforce 
and trade unions. 

2.4 This process has been conducted under the redesign methodology and 
included work to look at:  

 Plan – Set aims and objectives of the programme and identify roles 
and responsibilities. 

 Discover – Create a new target operating model and future vision. 

 Understand - Co-design the structure of the service with employees. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 4



Page | 2 
 

 Develop – Identify further improvements in service provision and 
develop new role profiles. 

2.5  In line with the customer strategy a digital first approach underpins the 
redesign. This means that all our customers who prefer to contact us 
using digital methods are able to do so. This will allow us to target and 
prioritise our services to those who are most in need within a locality 
setting.   

 
2.6 The proposal also supports the city mayor’s priorities around tackling 

poverty and inequality, economic development. It also recognises the 
National Programmes Family Hubs model and the Helping Families 
(Troubled Families) programme. Another of the key drivers has been to 
align the proposed model to complement the 0-25 locality model and 
make sure it is fit for purpose to align with any future placed based 
models across the city. 

2.7 In summary the proposed changes will ensure: 

 Better connection to neighbourhoods – the new model will mean 
more working out in communities, nipping issues in the bud, helping 
with debt and making sure we are properly billing for both residential 
and business. 

 Partnership – working better across the council and with other 
partners such as the NHS, housing providers, debt advice agencies 
and our voluntary sector to tackle debt as a wider determinant of 
health. 

 Maximising the technology available to improve routine 
processing activity and freeing up staff time – using data and 
automation where possible to carry out activities, allowing time to 
deal with customers who need a face to face service.  

 Values based – develop a workforce that embodies and embeds our 
values and is committed to delivering the best customer service to 
residents and businesses in the city. 

 Intelligence lead – using customer data and insight to allow different 
approaches to different people and businesses across the city. 

 

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: 
Consultation document on Assimilation and Selection process 
Analysis of Alternative Proposals Submitted by Employees 
Customer Strategy 2016 

 
 
KEY DECISION: No            

 
 
 
 

Page 4

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/388970/3-4695-customer-strategy_full_v5.pdf


Page | 3 
 

3.0: BACKGROUND TO THE PROPOSALS 
 
3.1 The division provides call handling 

and digital contact functions as well 
as the administration and collection 
of council tax, benefits, business 
rates, universal services and the 
customer service face-to-face offer 
within the gateway network. The 
proposal provides an opportunity for 
more integrated processing 
functions along with targeted and 
evidenced based interventions which 
are locality based and able to more 
readily respond to the support needs 
of individuals and their families, 
aligning itself with the target 
operating model.  

 
3.2 The proposal has been developed 

and based on the work that has 
been undertaken in Project 
Connect. At the heart of this 
redesign has been co-design in line 
with our reform methodology. 

 
3.3 On-going employee engagement has been key to the development of this 

proposal; numerous workshops have been attended by the employees in 
the division. Employees have developed and created their own role 
profiles in over 500 hours of workshops, observations, 1:2:1 sessions, 
team meetings and ideas submitted through suggestion boxes; all of 
which have provided employees with the opportunity to engage as much 
or as little as they wished with the process.  

 
3.4 The project connect delivery team was created to embed new 

technologies and streamline processes throughout the service. This has 
proved to be a major success, tapping in to staff from across the service 
i.e. subject matter experts whose knowledge and experience has been 
key to designing new ways of working and outcomes. The team delivered 
the following: 

 

 SMS text messages service    

 Scan stations  

 Discretionary Housing Payments online  

 E-Billing – council tax and business rates  

 New look and feel Salford customer account  

 Better off website and services - pop up coffee and chat morning 
across gateway centres 

 New Twitter channel for contact centre   

 Performance management system 

Page 5



Page | 4 
 

 Registrars online book and pay system 

 Better Off in Salford brand  

 Gateway up skilling in revenues and benefit services   
 
3.5 Work was also undertaken to quantify work volumes across the service at 

each level in the proposed structure which informed the number of posts 
at each level. This was based on information drawn from relevant IT 
systems and the detailed knowledge of line managers, with robust 
challenge from HR colleagues.  

 
3.6 This work informed proposals both on overall employee levels and the 

capacity required at each level within the revised structure.  
 
4.0    PROPOSED STRUCTURE 
 
4.1 Appendix 1 summarises the proposed structure that employees and 

unions were formally consulted on, and contrasts the proposed employee 
levels against current numbers at comparable salary levels and roles in 
the existing structure.  

 
5.0 DETAILS OF THE PROPOSAL 
 
5.1 The service proposes to disestablish the customer contact centre and the 

advice teams, aligning the resources from these services back into the 
specialist areas of council tax, benefits, business rates, universal services 
and the gateways. This will increase specialist domain expertise to the 
relevant departments and allow service managers to deploy employees in 
a more controlled way across customer contact, digital and processing 
functions whilst creating a new locality model.  

 
5.2 The current workforce numbers are 205 employees the equivalent of 181 

full time equivalents. The proposed structure will have 194 employees 
176.40 full time equivalent. 

 
5.3 It is proposed to: 
 

 Create a single benefits function that will deal with call handling using 
contact centre technology, digital enquiries and processing. Generic 
roles have been created within which employees can develop particular 
areas of focus whilst able to work flexibly across a broad range of the 
benefit services. 9 posts equivalent of 8.61 FTE are being created 
within this area. These will be ring fenced to the employees currently 
employed in the contact centre roles dealing with revenues and benefits 
enquiries. This brings the total number of employees in the benefit 
function to 55 equivalent to 52.54 FTE. 
 

 
 
 

 Current posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 
(FTE) 

Employee numbers 46 (43.93) 55 (52.54) 

Page 6



Page | 5 
 

 

 Create a single council tax function that will deal with call handling, 
digital enquiries and processing. Generic roles have been created 
within which employees will develop particular areas of focus but be 
able to work flexibly across a broad range of the council tax services. 
20 posts equivalent of 18.3 FTE are being created within this area. 
These will be ring fenced to the employees currently employed in 
contact centre roles dealing with council tax enquiries. This brings the 
number of employees in the council tax function to 40 equivalent to 
37.63 FTE. 

 
 
 
 
 

 Create a single Business Rates function that will deal with call handling, 
digital enquiries and processing. Generic roles have been created 
within which employees will develop particular areas of focus but be 
able to work flexibly across a broad range of the business rates 
services. 3 posts equivalent of 2.83 FTE are being created within this 
area these will be ring fenced to the employees currently employed in 
contact centre roles dealing with business rates enquiries. This brings 
the number of employees in the business rates function to 10 posts 
equivalent to 9.73 FTE. 

 
 
 

 
 

 

 Create a dedicated Inspection function that will deal with inspections 
across commercial and domestic properties realigning 3 posts 
equivalent to 2.76 FTE to focus on this function which will report into 
the Business Rates Service Manager. Employees will assimilate into 
these positions. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 Create a development and quality assurance function that will deal with 
the ongoing service developments, new legislative changes, customer 
insight and quality assurance across council tax, benefits, business 
rates and produce management information for the place based teams. 
8 posts are being created equivalent to 7.69 FTE. Employees will 
assimilate into these positions.  The employees will be assimilated from 
the contact centre and revenue and benefits services. 

 
 

 Current posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 

Employee numbers 20 (19.33) 40 (37.63) 

 Current posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 

Employee numbers 7 (6.9) 10 (9.73) 
Plus 1 additional post 

 Current 
posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 

Employee numbers 3 (2.76) 3 (2.76) 

Page 7



Page | 6 
 

 
 

 

 Create a single Universal Services section that will deal with calls and 
digital enquiries for environmental services, registrars and general 
switchboard enquires. Generic roles have been created within which 
employees will develop particular areas of focus but be able to work 
flexibly across a broad range of the universal services. One post graded 
at 2C from the existing team will be transferred as an additional post 
within council tax. The post holder will be assimilated into a 2C role in 
council tax, benefits or business rates dependent up on the skills 
match. 

 
 
 
 
 

 

 The 4 Gateways and Broughton Hub will play a critical role in ensuring 
a greater neighbourhood profile for revenues and benefits services. 
Five Locality Manager post will be created to lead on a locality based 
customer services model. The proposal will create roles within a locality 
setting which will allow employees to develop particular areas of focus 
within a district of the city. 3 additional Locality Team Leader posts are 
being created within this area.  The proposal is that the new Locality 
Managers will have a fixed location to enable them to establish 
themselves as part of a locality leadership team. As such the proposal 
would see a reduction of 1 manager.  The Team Leader positions 
across benefits, council tax, business rates and universal services will 
be ring-fenced to the individual displaced as a result. The current 
technical advisors will move across to the locality model as senior 
customer service officers.  

 

 The proposed re-design will streamline the service model reducing from 
47 different roles to 23. This would result in 15% (31) of the workforce 
transferring into higher graded roles. 1 employee could be at risk of 
transferring into a lower graded role and potentially 2 further employees 
could be affected subject to the outcome of competitive interviews 
during implementation. 

 

 The above numbers include the creation of 4 new team leader (4A) 
positions in each of the business rates, council tax, benefits and 
universal services which existing employees will be ring fenced to. 

 

 The gateway model also incorporates the creation of 3 Locality Team 
Leaders which existing employees will be ring fenced to. 

 Current posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 

Employee numbers 8 (7.69) 8 (7.69) 

 Current 
posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 

Employee numbers 11 (10.19) 10 (9.19) 

 Current posts 
(FTE) 

Proposed posts 

Employee numbers 52 (39.16) 62 (49.16) 

Page 8



Page | 7 
 

 

 42 temporary arrangements will be removed and consolidated into the 
substantive new structure.   

 

 4 FTE apprentice posts will be created.  
 

 In order to achieve the proposals above it is proposed to disestablish 
the stand alone Customer Contact Centre and the Advice Team. It 
should be noted that all employees will have a permanent position in 
the new structure.  

 

 This is a fundamental redesign of those service areas affected 
implementing a new operating model and creating new roles which 
provides the ability to release those individuals who do not wish to be 
part of the new model whilst creating and developing opportunities for 
apprenticeships and other new roles.  The above proposals therefore 
allow the 14 employees who have requested VS/VER, to leave the 
authority.  

 

 The new proposal means workforce numbers will be 195 employees 
the equivalent of 177.4 full time equivalents.  

 
5.4 Structure charts illustrating current staffing arrangements are attached 

at appendix 2 the proposed structure which would implement the 
changes outlined above is attached at appendix 1.  

 
6.0 IMPACT 
 
6.1 Role profiles have been co-designed with the workforce and have been 

produced for all job roles.  Job evaluation has been undertaken for those 
roles and shared with staff as part of the formal consultation.  

 
6.2 Specific employee impact is set out below: 
 

 For the majority of employees, it is proposed they will ‘slot in’ or be 
assimilated into a new role in the service; there are enough 
permanent roles for all employees.  

 

 There are currently 6 gateway manager posts (grade 4B), it is 
proposed that these will be disestablished and 5 Locality Manager 
posts (grade 4B) be created to lead on a locality based customer 
services model. As such the proposal would see a reduction of 1 
manager post.  A team leader position across either benefits, council 
tax, business rates or universal services will be ring-fenced to the 
individual displaced as a result. To summarise, the person affected 
will automatically be offered one of the new team leader posts (grade 
4A) as a suitable alternative whilst at the same time colleagues in 
HR will actively pursue any opportunities through the re-deployment 
pool at the same grade.  

 

Page 9



Page | 8 
 

 The whole process will be managed in accordance with the 
workforce change policy which provides up to 9 months’ pay 
protection in addition to 3 months’ contractual notice.  

 

 Suitability interviews will take place for the remaining 3 Team Leader 
posts (Grade 4A) for the following 6 employees at risk: 

 
 3 Contact Centre Operational Managers (grade 3B). 
 2 Technical Team Leaders, Advice Team (grade 3C). 
 1 Temporary Operational Manager (grade 4A) who has been 

acting up for a number of years. 
 
 Those individuals not appointed will be automatically assimilated to 

the new role of Locality Team Leader (Grade 3B) within the 
Customer Services locality model.  

 

 Employees currently working in contact centre and revenues and 
benefits roles will be ring-fenced to the new council tax, benefits and 
business rates officer roles. Expressions of interest will be invited for 
the preferred areas and will be accommodated where possible. 
Where it is not possible to accommodate preferences it may be 
necessary to conduct suitability interviews.  However the final 
decision on the deployment of resources will be based on the needs 
of the service and skills sets required. 

 

 It should be noted that there are sufficient number of posts to 
accommodate the number of employees and there are no proposed 
compulsory redundancies or a need to reduce headcount through 
further voluntary options. 

 
7.0  FORMAL CONSULTATION PROCESS  
 
7.1 Monthly sessions with UNISON were scheduled at a departmental level 

and the re-design of these services has been a standard agenda item on 
the directorate DCSC meeting. UNISON representatives have been 
invited to all of the redesign sessions. During the formal Consultation 
weekly meetings were arranged with UNISON and members were 
encouraged to attend these.  The proposal was also discussed at a 
meeting of the Joint Secretaries during the consultation period. 

 
7.2 Customer services employees were invited to a briefing session on 7th 

August 2018 with the Director of Service Reform and Head of Customer 
Services.  This was supported by colleagues from Human Resources. 
Representatives from the relevant trade unions were also invited to this 
briefing and attended.  Formal consultation with employees and trade 
unions, based on the proposals outlined above commenced on 13th 
August 2018.   

7.3  During the briefing employees were provided with details of the key 
changes proposed to the organisation of the service, staffing numbers 

Page 10

https://yourzone.salford.gov.uk/media/2237/workforce-change-policy.pdf


Page | 9 
 

and salaries. Employees were also advised as to how the formal 
consultation process would operate.  

 
7.4 As part of the formal consultation process weekly meetings were held 

between trade union representatives, Human Resources colleagues and 
the Head of Service. As well as using these meetings to discuss a range 
of issues around the proposals, officers were also invited to raise 
questions, express concerns and, to make representations regarding 
alternative proposals that they had developed. Three of these meeting 
were cancelled by UNISON as there were no agenda items.   

 
7.5  Service Managers also met with all employees individually prior to the 

formal consultation to discuss their individual impact and the details of 
the roles in line with the new operating model.   1 to 1s were also offered 
to all employees and the opportunity was taken up by 98 employees.  
Role profiles and job evaluation breakdowns were also shared with all 
employees. 

 
7.6 In addition to the above meetings, the Head of Service and colleagues 

from Human Resources also responded to a number of requests for 
information and clarification from individual officers and groups of 
employees both via e-mail and in person.  

 
7.7 A timeline of the activities throughout the engagement and consultation 

period can be found at appendix 3. 
 
7.8 The formal 45 day consultation period closed on Friday 5th October 2018. 

However; the formal consultation was extended by 10 days Wednesday 
17th October 2018 to allow the trade unions more time to provide a 
detailed response. 

 
7.9  At the close of the extended consultation period, the trade union made a 

submission that sought to consolidate the feedback they had received 
from their members.  

 
7.10  A formal response was received from Unison which is attached at 

appendix 4, this includes the management response to the submission.  
The main concerns raised by staff fall broadly into the following themes: 

 

 The use of role profiles rather than job descriptions and person 
specifications 

 Challenging the job evaluation scoring for specific factors 

 Concerns regarding staffing numbers including the proposed 
reduction of one Locality Manager 

 Additional points were raised by the trade union regarding the 
use of offsite processing and council tax reduction scheme 
However, this element did not form part of the formal 
consultation 

Page 11



10 

 

8. Feedback from trade union and staff consultation and management response 
 

Response number Summary of feedback received Management response to feedback Change made as a result 

1. Staff have found it difficult to interact with the consultation 
 
 

A formal briefing was held for all employees on 7th August, 
following which a comprehensive report was shared to all 
employees electronically. Officers from HR and trade union 
representatives also attended. 
 
45 days consultation period commenced on 13th August and 
was extended by 10 days to allow the trade union more time 
to respond.  
 
Employees were involved in redesigning and shaping the 
service at every stage. 
 
500 hours of invested time into workshops designing new role 
profiles. 
 
Weekly meetings were arranged with the trade union stewards 
to enable issues to be addressed as soon as possible; 3 of 
these were cancelled at the request of Trade Unions as there 
were no agenda items raised. 
 
As part of the consultation all staff were offered 1-2-1 meeting 
with management and human resources and 98 members of 
staff took these up.  
 
A time line of activities since Project Connect 
commenced is attached.  
 

Formal consultation period was extended for 
10 days  

2. There has been considerable confusion on future job roles 
Employees have approached senior managers for clarification of 
their future job roles and have received vague responses or told 
they have to wait until they have embed into the new role 
Every employee has a right to a clear job description and person 
specification 

All role profiles were co-designed and written by the staff 
members themselves. They were shared with all staff a week 
in advance of the formal consultation starting for further 
comments, none were received. 
  
Senior managers within customer services met with all 
employees to discuss the roles on a 1-2-1 basis.  
 
Individuals appointed to these roles will continue to focus on 
specific tasks and responsibilities as described in the role 
profiles. Service priorities are set out in Service Reform 
Business Plan. For individuals specific responsibilities will be 
set out and agreed in PDRs.  
 
This will ensure that the essential needs of the business 
continue to be supported and will also ensure greater 
resilience within the service. 

 

P
age 12



11 

 

Role profiles are being introduced across the organisation as 
services are redesigned in line with the redesign methodology, 
the shift to role profiles moves away from old style prescriptive 
job descriptions as the new profiles fit the needs of the council 
to have a more flexible work force to deliver key objectives. 
The new role profiles are clear and set out the requirements of 
the role, additionally workforce development plans will 
underpin the implementation of these roles and as such will 
provide further opportunity for clarity and explanation. 
 

3 Concerns regarding staffing levels 
Reference to a report raised August 2018 to which there has 
been no response. 
Specific comments: 

 All areas of service are under considerable pressure and 
perform badly in comparison to other local authorities. 

 This is not a reflection on staffs skills abilities and 
commitment but on poor corporate leadership with 
considerable understating. 

 This is at its most glaring in the area of Business Rates 
where since April 2017/18 as part of a pilot scheme the 
Council has been allowed to retain 100% of its income, yet 
it is an area that has the greatest staffing issues. Despite 
this being brought to the attention of corporate managers 
over 3 years ago little has changed in terms of 
performance. 

Sam Betts responded to this report on 5th September 2018 
stating that the redesign had overtaken events and any issues 
outstanding should be addressed through the consultation 
process.  
 
 
 
 
 
See response 5 in relation to Business Rates. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
4 

Email dated 5.1018 stated Trade Unions have requested 
during the consultation period an opportunity to meet with 
elected representatives and have still received no response. 

There has never been any request to meet with members 
during the consultation period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

5 The Business Rates team has the greatest staffing issues. 
 
The area of the business relies on Inspectors identifying new 
business. 
The few inspectors we have are being drawn into office based 
work. 
There is failure to maximise potential revenues. 
 
 
 

This area has been researched and benchmarked against 
other Council’s as part of the process. By redirecting the 
resource onto a pure inspection role i.e. inspecting residential 
and business and then fulfilling the transaction, the service is 
already seeing a significant improvement with over 500 
properties being added with a total value of 500k. 
 
However, it is agreed that this is a key function and an 
additional post will be added to the structure. 
 
 
 
 

Additional post of Inspector in the Business 
Rates team Grade 2C. 

P
age 13



12 

 

6 Grading: 
Specific comments: 

 The use of job profiles rather than job descriptions and 
person specifications has hampered the consultation 
period.  

 This has made it a longer process for members to do the 
necessary work to provide their rational to challenge the 
Job Evaluation scores.  

 Much of the consultation period has been spent trying to 
inform staff about how this process would work and what 
is required to challenge. It has also been difficult, due to 
pressure on the service, for teams to have time to do this 
work.  

 Would have liked to been in position to challenge grading 
during the consultation period but this has not been 
possible. 
 

 
 
See management response 1&2. 
 
A full evaluation has been undertaken for each of the roles 
listed we are satisfied that they are graded appropriately 
based on the content of the role profiles. During the 
consultation all factor break downs were shared with the 
workforce as part of the consultation.  
 
Weekly meetings were arranged during the consultation 
period for employees to attend with Trade Union 
representatives. Staff have been allowed as much time as 
needed to feedback on the process.  There were no 
challenges regarding grading raised at these meetings.  Three 
of the six meetings were cancelled due to no agenda items. 

 
 
Service Managers to arrange further sessions 
with employees to ensure they understand 
the concept of role profiles. Regular 1:1, team 
meetings and PDR’s will be taking place 
within the services.  
 

7 Business Rates Officers concerned that within the new 
structure they will be asked to do a number of tasks which 
are currently the role of Senior Business Rates Officer. 
  
Suggestion: 
 
Either increasing the staffing at Senior Business Rates Officer or 
accept a Job Evaluation challenge from Business Rates Officers. 
The union favours the former as consistent feedback from staff is 
the lack of technical support to the team. 
 

There is a clear difference between the 2 roles.  A clear 
distinction is that the Senior Officers will be expected to 
undertake 1 2 1s to carry out PDRs and support staff.  
 
This proposal is based on their current roles this will change in 
the new operating model.   
 
 

 
Review of staffing levels in 6 months. 

8 Challenging of Job Evaluation scoring for the following 6 
roles:- 
Benefits Adviser 
Senior Benefits Officers 
Development and Quality Assurance Officer 
Senior Customer Services Officer – Locality 
Business Rates Officer  
Customer Services Officer – Universal Services  
 

Feedback was noted and responded too as a result the 
universal services role was re-evaluated.  
 
In line with normal arrangement whenever a new position is 
created and evaluated there is an opportunity for it to be 
reviewed after 6 months. Given that all of the posts that have 
been requested to be re-evaluated are new roles these will be 
reviewed after 6 months and if it is clear that the role profiles 
do not reflect the duties being undertaken then a full re-
evaluation will take place.  Any change to grade as a result 
would be backdated to the date of implementation. 
 

 
All new roles to be reviewed after 6 months 
and if required will be re-evaluated. 
 
1 role re-evaluated  

9 The union and its members are disappointed at the lack of 
vision demonstrated within the proposals. 

Specific comments: 

The proposal set out by management makes some radical 
changes to the current customer services structure, to deliver 
an effective service in all areas going forward. Given that 
these were co-designed it was considered that the workforce 
were aware of the scope of the changes that have been put 
forward. 
 

 
No changes to the proposed structure are 
proposed. 

P
age 14



13 

 

 

Reference to the document entitled "Under-staffing in Customer 
Services" (as referred to in response 3). 

Salford is one of the worst performing in the UK.   

The problem will not be solved by technical innovation or the 
introduction of Universal Credit. 

The union wishes to see a structure and a service that increase 
business rates, improve collection rates and enhance the Mayors 
anti-poverty strategy. 

 

 

 

The response doesn’t contain any alternative delivery models 
or suggestions on what the structure should look like. 
 
The service has introduced a number of digital solutions over 
the past 6 months as part of project connect all of which will 
have an impact the way in which the service operates:   
 
SMS Text Messages  - 12,000 sent to customers 

Scan Stations – 43,898 documents scanned at Gateways 

DHP’s online – 530 applications 

E-Billing – 4600 C-tax, 750 BR  

New look and feel Salford Customer Account  

Performance Management System - live  

Registrars online portal live with staff - live 13 August 150 

bookings 

Better Off website in Salford - live 15th August – 2000 

views  

Pop up coffee and chat – 827 people attended  

‘Glass cube’ pilot with HMRC – Benefit overpayments 

Cabinet office & HMRC recovery pilot 

Customer Segmentation – Debt prioritisation service  

New and improved Govtech solutions  

Webchat update & SCC twitter channels  

The re-design gives a financial increase to 31 people, creates 
4 new apprenticeships, provides new career pathways 
underpinned by the apprenticeship levy, places a number of 
people in permanent positions that have been acting up for 
long periods of time, delivers a service that is fit for purpose to 
meet the needs of the people of Salford and most importantly 
will increase the collection rates for both council tax and 
business rates which will protect front line services and jobs 
from further cuts.  
 
The new locality service has a large emphasis on providing 
support to residents of the city using the ‘better off’ approach 
with forms part of the city mayor’s anti-poverty action plan. 
 

P
age 15



14 

 

10 The following suggestions are made 
- Increase in the Business Rates Inspection service  
- Dealing with Customers as quickly as possible 
- To stop the use of Northgate 
- An immediate review of the Council Tax Benefit 

Scheme locally 

First point agreed. 
 
The aim of the new structure is based on the ethos of being 
customer centric by bringing the contact centre function into 
each service will improve call rates and reduce the number of 
contacts required as employees become more specialised. 
Using localities to enhance the service will create much more 
capacity. 
 
The final 2 points relate to areas that were not part of the 
consultation.  However; in response:- 
 
The use of external providers to clear the backlog/enhance 
service delivery is and will continue to be a management 
decision. The use of any such service requires sign off 
through elected members and procurement board. The 
changes to the service should see the need for external 
support decreasing as backlogs are cleared and new ways of 
working are introduced.  
 
The Council must formally review whether to revise or replace 
its Council Tax Reduction Scheme on a yearly basis. This 
must be undertaken no later than October in the financial year 
preceding when the change is to take effect. The decision is 
taken by the Lead Member for 
 
Finance and Support Services following consultation with the 
City Mayor and the Mayoral Team.  
 

Additional post of Inspector in the Business 
Rates team Grade 2A  
(see response 3) 

11 Locality Manager Proposal 
 
To retain 6 Locality Managers based around the modern 
boundaries and socio-economic landscape of the city, reflecting 
the growth, needs and deprivation of these areas rather than just 
around the existing buildings.  
 
Under this proposal, two Locality Managers will be based at 
Pendleton Gateway to reflect both the size of the building and the 
population within this locality, with the remaining four Managers 
located in the existing Gateways at Swinton, Walkden, Eccles 
and Broughton Hub. This model will adequately resource to 
support our communities around the needs of these new 
localities rather than an outdated model based on building 
location, and enable us to assist the City Mayor achieve the 
Great Eight priorities. 
 
 

 
Under the revised locality model, it if felt that 5 managers is 
the appropriate number for the 5 gateways plus the service 
manager. The rationale of having 2 managers at Pendleton is 
not something that we are prepared to support on the basis of 
growth and demographics.  
 
The current staffing levels work on a rota with managers 
moving around the gateways. Under the new arrangements 
the locality manager will establish themselves in each area, 
there is therefore no longer a need for a 6th manager with no 
location.  
 
The 5 managers will be further supported by the Service 
Manager responsible for the locality based model in the 
Gateways. 
 

 
Already an increase of 3 Locality Team 
Leaders as part of the proposal  

P
age 16



15 

 

 
 
 
 
 

Areas to support this proposal: 
Increase in population – expected to rise to 74,426 by 2021. 
Housing Growth - Expected growth by 4,458 to 31,920 by 2020. 
A similar growth is expected between 2020 and 2025  
Media City alone is expecting an additional 20,000 people 
moving in, with 15,000 new jobs being created. 
Health, Wellbeing and Poverty – Around 70% of Salford’s 
population live in areas classed as highly deprived and 
disadvantaged.  
Deprivation - The pattern of deprivation in Salford by deprivation 
type is outlined below, and all areas show clusters around 
Pendleton Gateway which further supports the need for 2 locality 
managers to be based there to develop services to enable the 
lives of residents in this locality to be improved. 
Economy – The creation and continuing development of 
MediaCityUK has changed the face of the city, creating a globally 
important home for creative, digital and media industries and is 
also home to the University of Salford. Other significant 
developments within the city include Port Salford, Salford Central, 
RHS Bridgewater and Greengate. Four of the current 
developments are in the locality closest to Pendleton Gateway, 
creating further growth and increased demands for a strong 
Locality Management to be based there. 
  

The majority of growth in the areas referred to fall in to our 
digitally able customers and therefore we wouldn’t expect the 
increased demand at Pendleton Gateway as this traffic would 
be picked up online.  
 
Footfall figures at Pendleton Gateway have also been 
considered, the available data doesn’t show a significant 
increase in number of users. There may be a need for more 
advisors in the future should demand increase but not more 
managers.  
 
The proposal is based on what the managers are doing now 
this will change in new roles/operating model/structure. 
Locality Managers will be working differently and will not be 
operating as a Gateway Manager. 
 
There will also be an increase of 3 Locality Team Leaders as 
part of the proposal to support the locality managers. 
 
The Service Manager will be working to a new role profile and 
will be based across Gateway Centres which will provide 
further additional cover. 

 

P
age 17



16 

 

8.0     CHANGES AS A RESULT OF THE CONSULTATION 
 
8.1 Post consultation management have met with the trade unions on two 

occasions to give a formal verbal response on Tuesday 30th October and 
Thursday 8th November.  A formal written response was sent on 
Wednesday 7th November.  At the meeting on 8th November the unions 
made a request for a more detailed response in relation to job evaluation 
and also projected increase in collection rates. Management supplied 
this on Tuesday 13th November am in advance of a full staff briefing on 
Tuesday 13th November pm. See appendix 5 for a copy of the response.  

 
8.2   Having given full consideration to the response from the trade union 

management have agreed to increase the number of Inspectors from 
three to four posts. 

 
8.3  Management have agreed to re-evaluate any of the new job roles in 6 

months where is there evidence to support that the new role profile does 
not contain the full aspects of the new role. If the role does increase in 
pay this will be backdated. This is in line in the job evaluation scheme 
which states any new role will be reviewed after 6 months.  This will also 
be incorporated in PDRs and 1 to 1s.  

 
8.4 As a result of the feedback received during the consultation, a full re-

evaluation of the Universal Services role was undertaken resulting in an 
increase in job evaluation scoring. 

 
9.0 ACTIONS TO SUPPORT IMPLEMENTATION 
 
9.1 Managers from within the service have continued to work closely with 

HR colleagues to develop a detailed strategic Workforce Development 
Plan which will put arrangements in place to support employees through 
this transitional period and equip them appropriately to meet the ongoing 
challenges of new working practices and responsibilities. 

 
9.2 The Workforce Development Plan will support opportunities for 

development maximising the use of apprenticeship standards and 
funding through the levy.  20 employees have already been identified to 
undertake the Level 4 Revenues and Welfare Benefits Practitioner 
apprenticeship with a total investment of over £100k funded by the levy.  
Management will continue to identify opportunities under the 
apprenticeship standards. 

 
9.3 The approval of this redesign will also allow the creation of 4 new 

apprentice roles into the service.  These roles will rotate throughout the 
service gaining extensive experience which will be underpinned by the 
apprenticeship standard. 

 
9.4 The approval and implementation of this redesign will allow the release 

of 14 employees who had submitted VER and VS applications, in some 
cases over 3 years ago.   

Page 18



17 

 

9.5 If the Workforce Panel approve the proposals detailed in this report the 
Directorate’s objective would be to implement the new structure in 
January 2019 during which time the allocation of individual officers to 
specific posts and areas of work will be undertaken together with any 
interview processes that are required.  

 
10.0  UNIONS FURTHER SUBMISSION 
 
 Following a meeting with the lead member for Finance and Support 

services on 14th November a further written submission was received 
from the unions on 19th November (Appendix 7).  

 
 Key aspects: 
 
 Re-evaluation of 8 jobs - unions have acknowledged that the review 

would be undertaken in 6 months’ time with any increase be backdated 
to the implementation date. 

 
 Locality Managers - retain 6 managers and reduce the number of new 

Team Leader positions by 2. Management are clear that 5 Locality 
managers is appropriate, it is at the Team Leader level where additional 
support is required to deliver the service. 

 
 Business rates - this team consist of 8 people with one team leader and 

a service manager, the span of control doesn’t not warrant an additional 
2 team leaders. 

 
 Inspector role - this area has recently undergone BPR work which has 

seen significant impact on performance as outlined previously in the 
report. The new approach maximise the time in the field and also allows 
fulfilment of the duties from inspecting properties to bringing them into 
billing. 

 
 Withdrawal of outside contractors - management have been clear that 

does not form part of the consultation, however this is being looked at 
outside of the consultation process.  

 
11.0   CONCLUSION  
 

This report details the views on how the customer services division 
should be redesigned to meet the changing landscape in the service and 
to ensure a fit for purpose service.  The redesign is key to increasing the 
collection rates for both council tax and business rates which will protect 
front line services and jobs from further cuts.  

 
The City Council has committed to becoming a digital first council as 
described in the Customer Strategy, however the model allows for true 
end to end customer service design across all channels including 
telephony and face to face ensuring that the Council’s services are 
accessible and a great experience for everyone.  

Page 19



18 

 

 
 
 
Key features of the re-design are: 
 

 23 roles  

 Generic working to increase capacity & domain specialism  

 Virtual contact centres 

 Focus on customer service in a locality  

 New development opportunities – maximising apprenticeships 

 Focus on strategic priorities around anti-poverty and growth  

 Delivering the Customer Strategy 

 Creating a digital first approach 

 Neighbourhood/locality working  

 £220k saving  
 

It is envisaged that this new operating model and structure will create a 
new fit for purpose customer service function that will help tackle some 
of the cities key issues.   

 
KEY COUNCIL POLICIES:  

 Workforce Change policy  

 
 
EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 
 
Staffing implications 
All Council policies and procedures affecting workforce change will be 
implemented with rigour and without detriment to any group or individual 
covered by the protected characteristics identified in the Equality Act 2010. 
 
The current iteration of the assessment can be found at appendix 6. 

 
 
LEGAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Jeanette Williams, Senior Lawyer, Legal 
Services – 0161 793 3121 
 
A thorough consultation process has been carried out with trade unions and 
employees affected by the proposed changes in accordance with the Workforce 
Change Policy (WCP).  The City Council need to ensure that they continue to 
act in accordance with this policy and all other relevant policies/procedures as 
well as complying with any statutory procedures.  Failure to do so could result 
in the affected employees bringing claims against the Council for breach of 
contract and/or unfair dismissal. 
 
It is essential that the interviews and selection process for newly created posts 
(ring fenced to existing staff) are fair and lawful and the criteria consistently 
applied and objective.   
 

Page 20



19 

 

There is a risk that up to 3 employees will be transferred to lower graded 
posts.  Where an employee’s original post is no longer available within the 
new structure, the employee will not be entitled to a redundancy payment if 
they are offered and unreasonably reject the offer of ‘suitable alternative 
employment’.  However, it is unlikely that a lower graded post will be 
considered a suitable alternative as it will not be comparable to the current 
role, in terms of pay.  Therefore, should the affected employees chose not to 
accept the role, they will be dismissed by reason of redundancy and options to 
avoid compulsory redundancy should be explored.  Alternatively, if the 
employees accept the lower graded role, Employee Assistance should be 
applied. 

 
 
FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance 
Manager 
 
As discussed within appendix 1 of the report, the proposed changes to the 
Customer Services department will generate approximately £220k of revenue 
savings per annum. 
 

 
 
PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A 
 

 
HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Steve Hulme – 607 8631  
 
The main HR implications are contained in the body of the report   
 
In line with the Workforce Change Policy a thorough consultation exercise has 
been undertaken with the trade unions and employees affected by the proposed 
changes.  An extension to the original consultation timescale was agreed to 
enable the trade union to submit additional information.   
 
Assimilation to the new structure will be carried out in line with the City 
Council’s Workforce Change Policy with 12 weeks contractual notice issued.  
Those who have an increase in pay reserve their right to waive notice and 
therefore the increase would take effect from 1st January 2019.  
Implementation will take place with effect 1st April 2019. 
 
There are potentially 3 employees impacted; this will be dependent on the 
outcome of the competitive interviews.  If they are placed in a lower graded 
role Employee Assistance would apply and they would receive 9 months 
protection following the 12 weeks contractual notice.   
 
There are no proposed compulsory redundancies. 

 
 
CONTACT OFFICER: Steven Fry - Head of Customer and Digital Services  

 

Page 21



20 

 

 
WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES:  All 

 

Page 22



Document is Restricted

Page 23

By virtue of paragraph(s) 1, 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Head of service 

Council Tax x 1 Benefits x 1 Business rates x 1 Contact Centre x 1

Technical 
operational 

managers x 2

Gateways x 1

Operational 
Managers x 2

Operational 
Manager x 2

Gateway Managers 
x 6

Operational 
Manager x 1 Operational 

Manager x 3 

Senior technical 
officer x 2

QA officer x 1

Income officer x 1

Team leaders x 7

Customer Service 
Representative x 41

Taxation officer x 1

Council Tax officer x 
13

Customer Service 
development 
officer r x 1

Recovery officer x 1

Recovery assistant
 x 3

Training officer x 1

Appeals officer x 2

Senior technical 
officer x 3

Senior payment 
control officer x 1

QA officer x 1

Claims management 
officer L3 x 31

Benefit visit & claim 
officer x 2

Claims management 
officer  x 1

Claims management 
officer L2 x 1

Senior technical 
officer x 1

Senior technical 
officer income x 1

Property inspector x 
1

Taxation officer x 1

Business technical 
support & visiting 

officer x 1

Customer Service 
Representative  x 21 

@2C

Customer support 
officer x 21

Customer & 
Technical advisor  x 

9

Appendix 2
Current Structure   

Customer Service 
advisor x 2

Customer Service 
Representatives - 
Blue badges x 2

Receptionist x 1

Customer Contact 
Centre 

development officer 
x 1

Operation manager 
x 1 

System liaison and 
quality assurance 

officer x 1

Customer Service 
Development 

officer x 3

Training officer x 1

P
age 25



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Project Connect Consultation timeline 

 

 

April

Target                          Operating                     
Model

May- July

Co-design 
Workshop 
sessions

July

Proposal sign off 
by Director 

August

Proposal shared 
with employees

August-October

Consultation 
period 

October

End of 
consultation 

period

Complete by Detail throughout consultation 

April  Target Operating Model and timeline was produced and presented to all employees by Director and Head of Customer Services.  

May - July 

 All employees and union members were invited to attend the co-design workshop sessions ‘Bringing the target operating model to life’ and ‘How do we get there?’ and ‘Role 
profile feedback session’. 

 Sessions were held for all service areas including Council Tax, Benefits, Business Rates, Universal Services, Development and Quality Assurance, Operational Managers and 
Gateways.  

 Over 500 hours were invested into the workshop sessions which produced new role profiles for each service area.  
 Employees were given further opportunity to review final role profiles before the job evaluation process. 

July 
 HR dedicated over 25 hours observing employees in their service area to gain better understanding of their roles.   
 Role profiles were independently job evaluated and proposed structure drawn up by the Head of Customer Services. 
 Proposal presented to Director and signed off.   

August 

 6th August, The Head of Customer Services and HR held meeting with the union to take them through the proposals in depth. Head of Customer Services also held meetings with 
effected employees. 

 7th August, The Director and Head of Customer Services held a briefing session to all employees. The new structure was presented along with graded role profiles and staffing 
numbers. 

 The consultation period was explained to employees and timeline given, stating the start of consultation would commence on 13th August for 45 days.  
 To be transparent with employees, the consultation report was shared early with employees on the 8th August.  
 Service managers provided one to ones to all employees explaining their individual impact assessment before the start of consultation. 

August - October 

 Consultation period started on the 13th August for 45 day period. 
 As requested by the Union, weekly meetings were scheduled between Head of Customer Services, HR and Union members. These sessions we planned for open conversations 

and for employees to present considerations. 
 3 out of 6 Union meetings were cancelled by the union. The 3 sessions that were attended produced no formal considerations. 
 HR and Service Managers held 98 one to one or group session with staff during this period across all service areas. These were opportunities for employees to discuss new role 

profiles and present considerations. No considerations were raised through this process. 
 Head of Customer Services was available to meet throughout the consultation period, which several teams taking the opportunity to go through proposals. 
 Head of Customer Services provided regular updates to employees around unison availability throughout consultation 
 Consultation ended 5th October. 

October 

 Union response to consultation report was provided late on Monday 8th October. 
 The report stated considerations documentation had been received but not included in the report. 
 A meeting was arranged on 9th October with Head of Customer Services, Union and HR to discuss the response. 
 During the meeting the Head of Customer Service requested supporting documentation stated in the response. The Union were not prepared to share documentation. When 

asked for dates when this documentation would be provided, they refused to commit to a date. 
 Decision was made by the Head of Customer Services to extend the consultation a further 5 days ending at 12pm 12th October. 

P
age 27



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Union Response to the Consultation Report in Customer Services 

Introduction 

Staff have found it difficult to interact with this consultation. There has been considerable 

confusion on future job roles. The reduction in job roles has often left staff feeling uncertain 

as the reduction has led to very generalised statements about their potential future role and 

has blurred the demarcation between different tiers of seniority. They say when they have 

approached more senior managers about clarifying their future roles they have often 

received vague responses or told they will have to wait until they bed into the “new role” or 

being told that they are missing the point as the role has changed. It is the union view that 

every employee has a right to a clear job description and person specification. Surely this 

will be required for any future recruitment? 

Staffing 

Firstly I refer you to a report completed by the union in August 2018 to which we have had 

no response (see attachment). 

This is probably the greatest area of contention between union members and the 

consultation report. All areas of the service are under considerable pressure and perform 

badly in comparison to other local authorities. This is not a reflection on staff’s skills abilities 

and commitment but on poor corporate leadership with considerable understaffing. This is 

nonsensical in an area which is revenue raising for the Council. This is at its most glaring in 

the area of Business Rates where since April 2017/18 as part of a pilot scheme the Council 

has been allowed to retain 100% of its income, yet it is an area that has the greatest staffing 

issues. Despite this being brought to the attention of corporate managers over 3 years ago 

little has changed in terms of performance. 

This area of the business also relies on inspectors identifying new business but the failure to 

resource the inspection team, with the few inspectors we have being drawn into office 

based work, we are further failing to maximise potential revenue. It is worth noting that in 

this area the Council has no right to back date. 

As part of the staff reduction 6 Gateway Managers will be replaced by 5 Locality Managers.  

This reduction is not acceptable to the union nor do we believe it to be in the interest of the 

service. We would request a separate meeting between union and management to explore 

the staff’s alternative proposal. 

Grading 
 
The use of job profiles rather than job descriptions and person specifications has hampered 
the consultation period. This has made it a longer process for members to do the necessary 
work to provide their rational to challenge the Job Evaluation scores. Much of the 
consultation period has been spent trying to inform staff about how this process would 

Page 29



work and what is required to challenge. It has also been difficult, due to pressure on the 
service, for teams to have time to do this work. We would have liked to been in position to 
challenge grading during the consultation period but this has not been possible. 
 
The follow job roles wish to challenge their grading: 
 
Universal Services Officer 
Benefit Assessors 
Senior Benefits Officers 
Development & Quality Assurance Officers 
Senior Council Tax Officers 
Senior Customer Services Officers 
 
The union suggests that a meeting takes place between management and union with staff 
representation to try and seek agreement of the validity of their claim. 
 
Finally, although Locality Team Leaders, , at this time do not wish to challenge their grade 
there may be implications if regrading is awarded to other staff and in the discussion that 
will take place in clarifying the role and number of Locality Managers.  Furthermore other 
staff who may be displaced through any restructure have expressed their unhappiness at 
the lack of parity in grading for Gateway team leaders compared to other team leaders 
based with other streams. 
 
Business Rates Officers are also concerned that within the new structure they will be asked 
to do a number of tasks which are currently the role of Senior Business Rates Officer. There 
are 2 possible solutions to this: increase the staffing at Senior Business Rates Officer or 
accept a Job Evaluation challenge from Business Rates Officers. The union favours the 
former as consistent feedback from staff is the lack of technical support to the team. Again 
we would request a meeting between union and management to attempt to resolve these 
concerns. 
 
Customer Services Redesign 
 
The union and its members are disappointed at the lack of vision demonstrated within the 
proposals. 
 
The situation has not changed from the document entitled "Under-staffing in Customer 
Services" and the proposals put forward by management will not alter the position of 
Salford as one of the worst performing in the UK.  We can only restate that this is not due to 
the lack of commitment from the staff but a lack of resources and vision by senior 
managers. 
 
This problem will not be solved by technical innovation or the introduction of Universal 
Credit (all feedback is that it will require more staff not less). 
 
The union wishes to see a structure and a service that increase business rates, improve 
collection rates and enhance the Mayors anti-poverty strategy. 

Page 30



 
In this spirit we make the following suggestions: 
 

1. Increase the size of the inspection service- the union would suggest as a minimum 5 
inspectors are required to maximise potential income predominately in the areas of new 
build council tax and business rates. These inspectors should spend the 
overwhelming majority of their time in the field. If this increase was successful and further 
increases would be achieved by further expansion this then could be considered. If 
inspectors were to be given a geographical area it would also be worth revisiting where they 
are placed in the structure. This will undoubtedly cause the need for more assessors in 
Council Tax and Business Rates as a current factor limiting their work of the is the inability of 
the "Back Office" to cope with new work generated.  

2. Dealing with customers as quickly as possible. It is not an effective business that allows 100s 
and occasionally over a 1000 calls to be abandoned each day. When customers do get 
through it is not helpful to redirect them to another online process if it is possible to deal 
with the claim, change of circumstances, bill, then and there. This requires not only more 
staff but a change of approach.  

3. In the last year it has become the norm for Corporate Managers to use Northgate to clear 
the backlog in processing that is created. This is not acceptable to union members and 
clearly highlights the lack of staffing. In effect members work is being outsourced. The union 
requests that this practice is stopped and a structure is put in place to cope with the work 
required without the use of private firms. 

4. An immediate review of the Council Tax Benefit Scheme locally. From a member viewpoint it 
makes little sense to use considerable resources to chase those that are accumulating debts 
due to the 15% contribution. We believe any cost benefit assessment would support this 
view. The Council should consider amending its local scheme. This would allow resources to 
support and engage with those who can have a larger impact on improving collection rates 
without the use of punitive measures including bailiffs. This will also enhance the Mayor’s 
anti-poverty strategy. 

This alternative proposal also supports the request to challenge grading in the teams 
identified and consideration of the proposal to have 6 Locality Managers than 5. The union 
continues to maintain the position that no member should face a reduction in pay through 
the restructure. Those at risk of losing income have often contributed over and above their 
role for a significant period of time to help meet the needs of the service. As such the union 
members have an agreed position that anyone detrimentally affected by the proposals 
could result in a formal dispute being lodged with the employer. We hope that such a 
course of action is unnecessary and we can work together to meet the interests of both staff 
and service users. 
 
Ameen Hadi 
Salford City Unison 
 

 

 

Page 31



This page is intentionally left blank



Customer Services 
Consultation Feedback 

 

This document provides further guidance and clarification to points raised by 

members in the proposed structure and roles within Customer Services. 

 

Job Evaluation 

 

SENIOR CUSTOMER SERVICES OFFICER – LOCALITY 

We have collectively looked at the new role profile and believe that there are 

features of the role which have not been identified and taken into consideration in the 

evaluation scoring. We have pointed these out below and hope these can be looked 

into and recognised in a re-score of the role. 

Points missing/additions to current points:- 

 Although point 1 mentions high risk cases, this doesn’t necessarily take into 

account that the enquiries undertaken are extremely complex and involve the 

most vulnerable, volatile and unpredictable customers, for whom we find 

solutions to their enquiries. 

 We will be the officers who will liaise between back office and Gateways staff 

and interpret and convey in various methods of training the changes in 

legislation, systems and procedures and new policies, ensuring all front line 

staff are providing accurate and up to date advice. 

 Point 3 doesn’t read very well where it mentions promoting customers and we 

believe it needs to include more; we will be processing claims/requests and 

following technical procedures, supporting customers in a range of services 

such as council tax, business rates and benefits in line with the customer 

strategy whilst also delivering a digital first approach. 

 Point 4, we would add; to understand, interpret and convey relevant council 

policies and procedures and enforcing these effectively. 

 We will be using knowledge of the locality and customers to regularly evaluate 

our procedures, customer engagement and BetterOff events, gauging the 

most appropriate actions and adjusting the way we work accordingly to 

adhere to unanticipated change. 

 We will be engaging with internal staff and stakeholders in line with our 

BetterOff promise, ensuring that all safeguarding issues relating to our 

customers are highlighted to the correct departments and are dealt with 

appropriately. 

 Unlike the previous role, we will now be taking a pro-active and tailored 

approach in line with the Mayor’s anti-poverty strategy, promoting and taking 

a lead in the BetterOff events, building relationships with stakeholders to 

consistently improve outcomes and in line with the corporate debt approach, 

take on case work to negotiate, recover and manage debt, increase collection 

Page 33



by resolving foreseeable issues and reducing the amount of complaints 

received. 

Points to consider in the re-score:- 

 Knowledge – we will be using theoretical plus practical and procedural 

knowledge in a specialist area as we will now be judging best practice on 

what works well for collection and ensuring customers are better off in 

each locality. The role will no longer solely rely on following imbedded 

policies and procedures, but will require knowledge of the council’s 

concepts and principles regarding new strategies we are undertaking in 

Customer Services. 

 This role will be part of a team who will report to the Head of Service 

led by the service and locality managers who will have the overall  

operational responsibility for the direction , procedures and 

decisions   

 We have reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the new role and 

there is not the requirement as described, however the required 

duties and responsibilities of the new role have been reflected in the 

job evaluation outcome. 

 

 Mental Skills – the role involves interpreting complex information 

/situations and solving difficult problems and developing solutions over the 

medium term. We will be working with the most vulnerable and challenging 

customers, interpreting technical information and developing solutions, 

making plans over the financial year, we will be in contact with the 

customers to help them solve and manage their council tax/business rate 

debt over the period of a financial year whilst ensuring collection rates are 

at the best possible. We will be forward planning months ahead and 

creating solutions in line with the BetterOff events at each locality. 

 This was the main purpose of the previous role so no review of the 

current score required. 

 

 Initiative and independence – The new role will exercise much more 

initiative and independence, we will be managing more casework and 

tailoring our service to the changing requirements of the centres, involving 

a requirement to manage our own workload, making decisions regarding 

how duties will be carried out and responding initiatively and independently 

to unanticipated problems and situations. 

 We have reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the new role and 

there is not the requirement as described, however the required 

duties and responsibilities of the new role have been reflected in the 

job evaluation outcome.  

 The role will be part of a locality based team , with clear reporting 

lines to both a Team Leader & a Locality manager 

 

Page 34



BENEFIT OFFICER 

 

MENTAL SKILLS (CURRENTLY LEVEL 2) 

 (Examples for higher level that we currently action). 

-Analytical skills include coming to a decision on beneficial/non beneficial changes 

on wage details…relevant benefits…interpreting wages slips which vary from 

employer to employer…the effect of child care costs on wages…expenses on wage 

details.  

-Bank statements…analysis of bank statements to determine potential deposits and 

income (potentially hidden items)…for multiple bank accounts determining whether 

there is any tariff income/excess capital over 16000 and the dates they apply from. 

 The above duties are currently undertaken and have always been part of 

the process of calculating benefits 

-Supported Tenancies…balancing payments for different landlords especially when 

changing addresses (similar to rent account audits).  

-Now being asked to reconsider claims and provide explanations (before these were 

actioned by higher grades-senior benefits officers and appeals officers).  

 Already reconsider claims and have been doing for a couple of years. If 

it is an appeal then it will still be passed up to the senior benefit officers. 

-Complex City Mayor and Councillor Enquiries (e.g. cases-originated from fraud)   

 Dealing with complex City Mayor and Councillor enquiries will not be 

required within this role. 

-Related to landlord queries.  

 This has always been a fundamental part of the role as a claims 

management officer. 

 We have reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the new role and 

there is not the requirement as described, however the required duties 

and responsibilities of the new role have been reflected in the job 

evaluation outcome.  

 

EMOTIONAL DEMANDS (CURRENTLY LEVEL 2) 

(Examples for higher level that we currently action). 

-Increased frequency of contact with the public on phones…coffee/chat 

mornings…health improvement bus…potential working from Job Centres to increase 

CTR claims. 

-Cases which have significant emotional demands (eg.fire deaths case in 

Walkden)…claimants with imminent threat of eviction…contacting customers to get 

them to claim CTR (who have high arrears)…appearing in court cases on the 

Page 35



witness stand (benefit fraud cases) (outside the court room sitting with the alleged 

fraudsters).   

-Increased frequency of emotional demands connecting with the ever increasing 

workloads…whirlwind days (two days a week)…changing to differing work 

(sometimes on a daily basis)…diversity of staff reactions to these pressures 

(potentially affecting mental health/sleep patterns…acknowledged by D Brown at 

DCSC).  

-Increased frequency of speaking to demanding landlords 

 The numbers of HB claimants will be reducing over time due to 

Universal Credit 

 Customer contact has and will continue to be a fundamental part of 

the role. 

 The whirlwind days are there to take the pressure of staff and allow 

them to concentrate on specific pieces of work. 

 We have reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the new role and 

there will be frequent requirement to deal with people who are upset, 

however if there are significant issues there is management support 

available, therefore the job evaluation is reflected in the role.   

 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR SUPERVISION (CURRENTLY LEVEL 1) 

(Examples for higher level that we currently action). 

-Regularly check other assessors work to make sure a claim is correct before 

actioning. 

 Staff are responsible for assessing a claim and if they see that 

something is wrong on a claim then they are expected to correct this.  

They are not expected to audit the claim but if they are adding to the 

claim then they need to make sure they are happy with the details on the 

claim this is appropriate diligence for a benefits officer.  

-Training colleagues from the contact centre to acquire assessing skills. 

-Self training amongst current assessors (for example Universal Credit)…previous 

trainers have long since left and assessors have taken ownership for training 

themselves…arguably DQA Officers do not have these skills…also floor walking 

(advice) from senior benefit officers have already been reduced substantially and 

soon will be gone altogether due to a change in their role.  

 Duties will not be undertaken and has not been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. However there is an expectation with for all 

staff to support each other as colleagues and share good practice. It is 

also part of the role to personally up skill in new legislation or policy i.e. 

Universal Credit. 

Page 36



 

 

RESPONSIBILITY FOR PHYSICAL RESOURCES (CURRENTLY LEVEL 2) 

(Examples for higher level that we currently action). 

-Handling large amounts of confidential/sensitive information in compliance with 

GDPR and Data Protection legislation examples of which are… 

-CIS…details of DWP records of claimant income details. 

-WURTI…HMRC income information 

-CAMS…varied information 

-Northgate…varied information 

GCSX FRAUD-transcripts of interviews under caution…surveillance 

information…previous convictions…details of sentences…one strike 

sanctions…serious and organised fraud (Bromley)…LAIEFS (LOCAL AUTHORITY 

INFORMATION EXCHANGE FORMS). 

-Information from Corporate Fraud (SCC)…Witness Statements etc. 

 There is an expectation to deal with a large amount of data in the new 

role to be handled in line with council policies and procedures, this been 

included in the evaluation of the new role. 

 

INITIATIVE AND INDEPENDENCE (CURRENTLY LEVEL 3) 

(Examples for higher level that we currently action). 

-Supported tenancies …direct responses to emails from largest supported tenancy 

landlord. 

-Fraud workload  

-Monitoring of diary events to manage our own workload (self-

reviews/students/JSA/ESA) and prioritisation. 

HBMS reports …prioritising and organising this work 

Fraud…now making decisions on “living together cases” which was previously done 

by DWP and detailed examination of all factors including detailed examination of 

legislation/regulations/IUCs/witness statements. 

 Everything we handle from the customer is confidential and should be 

treated in line with guidance from Information Governance.  This isn’t 

anything new from GDPR, as prior to this, it was always the case under 

data protection act. 

Page 37



 Duties will be undertaken in new role and has been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. 

 

WORKING CONDITIONS (CURRENTLY LEVEL 2) 

(Examples for higher level that we currently action). 

-More exposure to public and increased face to face roles (phones/coffee 

mornings/health improvement bus etc.)…documented abuse from customers 

phoning the contact centre (including racial abuse-noted at DCSC)…LESS use of 

mail and more contact with customers leading to more exposure to unpleasant 

behaviour….face to face interviews with self-employed people). 

 We have reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the new role and 

there could be a requirement to deal with people who are verbally 

abusive, however if there are significant issues there is management 

support available, therefore this is reflected in the job evaluation.   

 

SENIOR BENEFITS OFFICERS 

After taking into consideration the senior benefit officer roles and that 5 employees 

come from 3 different backgrounds involving different tasks within those roles we 

have some concerns in relation to the JE score that we have been given. 

We have been scored at a level 3 for mental demands. 

We believe that we should be scored at least level 4 for mental demands. The work 

we do regarding appeals (submissions) and rent reviews are prolonged pieces of 

work because they are lengthy in duration, extended and protracted –they are not 

just pieces of work where you may work on it for a long or short period of time and 

then you can close it off, because there is follow up work to be done to it.   

 We have briefly detailed some of tasks that we do as follows: 

 We submit appeal submissions to the Tribunals Service which can take a long 
time to compile –there may be more evidence received to add to the original 
response or reply to at a later stage.  There may be several hearings at the 
tribunal and there is follow up work to do after the hearing.  This involves a 
high level of work related pressure as we have to meet tribunal deadlines 
even though we may have conflicting demands on us, because this is not our 
only job and have to prioritise everything else we are doing.  One example of 
such cases first involving  16 properties  with various different units within 
them, adding on 9 other properties going  along and still growing with more 
properties being added to the scheme   has been  going on for prolonged 
periods requiring enhanced mental attention for a significant number  years, 
over six years to my relocation.  

 We believe this refers to an isolated case. The numbers of hearings 

that are attended by the officers is now minimal. 

Page 38



 We action rent reviews – These are not one off pieces of work.  We are 
analysing the rents, requesting further information, negotiating with landlords 
and service providers, collating all the evidence, determining if they are 
eligible for housing benefit as per universal credit Regulations and producing 
information for the assessors to process the claims.  This is a long term piece 
of work as although we are looking at the new schemes being set up we have 
also been annually reviewing established schemes.   

 We also action SHBE, BOXI, daily reports – again these are not just one off 
pieces of work but ongoing. We have to meet deadlines (internal once a 
week, DWP monthly) which has an impact on the figures that we give to the 
DWP regarding new claims and changes.  

 

 We have reviewed the duties and responsibilities of the new role, and 

points highlighted are infrequent and not a part of the role on a daily 

basis, therefore the job evaluation is reflective of this.   

 

We have been scored Level 3 for Responsibility for financial resources. We believe 

that we should be scored level 4 for Responsibility for financial Resources. The work 

we do regarding Payment control is to deal with the Housing benefit payments that 

are made each week and to make sure that the payments made are correct and 

Issued / Transmitted on time. 

Changes are constantly being made and the work developed to make sure the 

procedures and working practices are kept current and up to date.  

Taking into account changes in technology and good working practices we have 

detailed some of tasks that we do as follows: 

 The Housing Benefit payments have to be balanced every week, which are 
very large amounts of up to approximately #3,000,000.00 per week. This is 
made up of smaller amounts for individual claimants and landlords. These 
payments are made by both BACS and Cheques.  

 There is a responsibility for checking the amounts are correct, which includes 
checking amounts for individuals both landlord and claimant and adjusting the 
bulk payment before the payments are issued /transmitted.  
Any discrepancies have to be investigated and identified so that any problems 

can be rectified. 

 The balancing ,checking and Issuing / transmitting of the payments has to be 
done within set timescales as any delay in dealing with these can mean the 
payments don’t get made on time, which can have an effect of customers / 
claimants. 

 Monitoring of payments being returned, both BACS and Cheques is done 
regularly to ensure that these are accounted for, as these have an impact on 
the amount budgeted for and the subsidy claim each year. 
 

 The new role provides advice and guidance related to customer claims, 

the financial outcome is system driven. 

 

Page 39



DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY ASSURANCE OFFICER 

We have met as a group and feel we have scored lowly on our job evaluation score 

and need to understand the reasons why. 

Below are the all the areas and our reasons why we wish to query certain scores 

given.  

Working conditions  

Low score of 10  

Ask questions as to why?  

We feel this is low  

We feel as a team we will still have to carry out site visits internally and externally to 

identify working trends and new ways of working and new processes in the new role 

as well as attend staff awareness session and conduct training at various locations. 

 Duties will be undertaken in new role on an adhoc basis and has been 

included in the evaluation of the new role. 

 

Knowledge  

Low score of 5 

We strongly feel in order to perform in system improvement, training and legislative 

reporting we needed specialist knowledge of processes, procedures, systems and 

legislation. Not just for one service area but for all areas of service reform. Revs, 

Bens, Ctax, Universal Services as well as operating differences across the whole 

business function and various ICT systems required in order to operate and 

implement service improvement. 

 Duties will be undertaken in new role and has been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. 

 

Mental Skills 

Appropriate score of 4 

Interpersonal Skills 

Appropriate score of 4 

Physical Skills  

Appropriate score of 3 

Initiative and Independence  

Page 40



Low score of 4 

We feel we often have to work alone to understand and interpret systems, projects 

and new ways of working, whilst also having to solely be responsible for general 

training material and awareness of a new solution. Year-end testing requires 

allocation of tasks; System implementation requires allocation of resources and 

arranging uat. Another example would be solely running and administrating 

workshops and training sessions.    

 Duties will be undertaken in new role and has been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. 

 

Physical Demands 

Low score of 1 

We feel we will be expected to help maintain and move office equipment, very much 

ad-hoc and upon request, i.e. this board is needed in the meeting room, my monitor 

needs swapping, why is this not powering up…etc. Linking into development 

workshops and training sessions we are often required to source, collect and set up 

appropriate equipment and environments in order to effectively deliver awareness 

and or training.  

 Duties will not be undertaken and has not been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. Salford City Council have facilities 

management, ICT teams who can that support such requirements. 

 

Mental Demand 

Low score of 4 

We are expected to deliver training & support to new procedures, policy, projects 

and ways of working. Inevitably we will be approached, as we are now, for guidance 

and advice on these subjects by senior managers, Team leaders, all staff in respect 

of dealing with complaints, general queries and re assurance from both current and 

previous implementations. We will be interrupted on a daily basis  

 Duties will be undertaken in new role and has been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. Samples provided do not related to mental 

demands, however is reflected in initiative and independence. 

 

Emotional Demands 

Low score of 1 

We are expected to engage with Stakeholders, train staff and liaise with 

management and potentially members of the public for insights and awareness to 

Page 41



identify, monitor and identify trends and gain feedback. A lot of stigma and staff 

issues will be discussed along with potential objection from members of the public as 

to why we are introducing new systems or procedures. This requires emotional 

demands in respect of remaining neutral and positive about representing the council 

and senior management.  Thinking on our feet in order to react and discuss many 

various challenging and conflicting opinions to gain agreement and a common 

consensus. 

 Under the job evaluation scheme, these examples would not be 

considered to be emotional demands. 

 

Responsibility for People 

Appropriate score 2   

Responsibility for Supervision  

Appropriate score of 2 

Responsibility of Financial Resources 

Low score of 1 

We are expected to assist Service Managers in statistical returns and often required 

to report out of systems in order to hit performance targets in respect of maintaining 

and achieving budget goals. Any inaccuracies or incorrect advice given in these 

statistical returns could have serious consequences on the performance of service 

reform financially. We could also recommend changes in improving statistical returns 

in order to achieve increased income.  

 Under the job evaluation scheme, these examples would not be 

considered under financial resources. 

 

Responsibility for Physical Resources 

Low score of 3  

We are expected to identify, procure, adapt, design, configure and build reporting 

tools on major essential business systems. With internal and external providers and 

numerous stakeholders  

 Duties will be undertaken in new role and has been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. 

 

Working conditions 

Appropriate score of 1 

Page 42



BUSINESS RATES OFFICER 

As a team we have been considering our new role profiles and we have a few 

concerns regarding what duties we may be required to do in the future as the new 

role profiles are rather vague.  

We require some clarification from management of the duties that we may be 

required to complete.  We are concerned that these new roles may be the duties 

currently undertaken by the senior business rates officer.  

Listed below are a number of roles currently carried out by the Senior Business rates 

Officer which we think may be deescalated to the level 1 staff under this new 

structure. 

1. Charitable Relief Cases   this includes the consideration and input of 
mandatory/discretionary rate relief to the system.  This is completed once we 
have liaised with individual charities and put cases forward to Senior 
Management/Councillors for consideration 
 

2. Hardship Cases   this can be quite a sensitive area due to the vulnerability 
of certain customers.  

 There is no expectation that these duties will not be undertaken by this 

role. 

 
3. Valuation this is a very important area of the business rates and ultimately 

collection is based on the rating list being continuously kept up to 
date.  Although some of the amendments to the rating list can be ran 
automatically through the system the more complex valuation can’t be. I.e. 
Splits and Mergers, Historical RV changes and New Properties.  The 
balancing of the rating list is also a complex area and needs to be done 
periodically to balance the total rateable value with the total Rv with the 
Valuation Office 

4. Boxi Reports  Management sometimes request boxi reports to be run 
through the system to make comparisons on the system of different 
accounts/properties 

 There is no expectation that these duties will not be undertaken by this 

role. 

5. Organising Notice Issues  Reminder Notices, Final Notices,  Summonses 
and Issuing to Bailiff 

 There is no expectation that these duties will not be undertaken by this 

role. 

6. Statement of Accounts    these often require manual calculations often 
involving Transitional Rate Relief and previous RV changes many can go 
back a number of years.  They have to be done manually as Northgate 
cannot produce the correct bill for individual years.  

7. Authorising of refunds over £1000.00 Many refunds for authorising can be 
extremely large amounts many of which may go to senior management for 
signing.  The complex ones usually arise from complex valuation cases.  

Page 43



8. Escalated enquiries  basically who do we turn to with complex 
enquiries,  we used to have Supervisors/floor walkers 

9. Insolvency This is where a company becomes Insolvent by means of 
liquidation, Dissolution or Bankruptcy, meaning they are no longer trading.  

Insolvency also covers Administration/Receivership and ensuring the correct 

CVA/IVA is applied to accounts. 

This is a very complex area of business rates which involves liaising with the 

Official Receivers, Insolvency Practitioners, Duchy of Lancaster, landlords 

and agents.  

Billing needs to be correct to reflect the various stages of Insolvency 

10. Section 44A This is a temporary allowance where a company is not using 
the whole of the property for a period of time but does intend to reuse it in the 
future.  The ratepayer has to supply a plan of the property showing the area 
not being used and we have to apply to the Valuation Office for a temporary 
certificated RV.  

11. Small Business Rates Reliefs (Complex).  This may be where we need to 
consider applying the SBRR Extension where we have to determine the 
rateable values of each property and determine the dates it can be applied and 
removed.  

12. Complaints 
 There is no expectation that these duties will not be undertaken by this 

role. 

 

 Remaining points raised are already included in the new role and have 

been reflected in the job evaluation outcome. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 44



 

CUSTOMER SERVICES OFFICER- UNIVERSAL SERVICES 

We would like to challenge our Job Evaluation on the following grounds: 

1. Knowledge- we are required to understand 17 different services with detailed 

knowledge know relevant policies/ procedures. These have to be explained in 

clear terms to the public or deal with councillor or mayoral enquiries. 

 

 The team are not required to deal with 17 different services. The team 

deal specifically with 3 dedicated service areas (Environmental, 

Registrars and elections). In addition they answer general enquiries 

which include Highways, School Admissions and Free School Meals 

where knowledge of the service area is required. The team deliver these 

services on behalf of the business areas and are not expected to have 

in-depth knowledge. Any enquiries they are unable to deal with would be 

referred to the business or advice sought from the business.  

 The team deal with a wide variety of enquires not mentioned above but 

they are low level and involve giving guidance and advice. They also 

signpost to the web to our self-service online transactions and other 

agencies and partners. They are not expected to deal with councillor or 

mayoral enquiries unless they are low level; anything more in-depth 

would be dealt with by the operational manager. 

 Duties are reflected included in the evaluation of the new role. 

 

2. Physical Skills- we have the ability to traverse over 6 systems for the services 

the team covers. We also have to keep comprehensive notes. 

 

 Though the team access a variety of systems they would not have to 

traverse them all at the same time as particular systems are relevant to a 

particular service request. The majority of the systems they have access 

to are for view only purposes. All Staff are expected to add notes onto 

relevant systems. Comprehensive notes would be an exception. 

 Duties are reflected included in the evaluation of the new role. 

 

3. Initiative and Independence- the team deal with any problematic enquiries 

themselves liaising with other departments including Heads of Service to 

rectify problems. We also have to deal external agencies e.g. Fire Service, 

GMP. These are almost exclusively dealt with by team members. 

 

 As referred to earlier when appropriate if the team cannot deal with an 

enquiry they would refer on or take advice from the business. Any 

enquiries from partners would be dealt with in the same way as a 

customer enquiry. 

 Duties are reflected included in the evaluation of the new role. 

Page 45



4. Mental Demands: attention required is constant with calls queuing throughout 

the day. 

 

 Call queuing is the nature of the call centre environment. You can only 

answer one call at a time. 

 Duties are reflected included in the evaluation of the new role 

 

5. Emotional Demands-customers often abusive, threatening and demanding. 

Customers often threaten suicide or have significant physical or mental health 

needs. We need to be able to deescalate the situation and provide clear 

advice to rectify problems 

 

 Examples raised have been taken into account under working 

conditions.  

 

6. Responsibility for Supervision- train new starters. Train existing on new 

procedures e.g. Social Media. We compile training manuals / guides to 

support training. 

 

 Duties will not be undertaken and has not been included in the 

evaluation of the new role. There is an expectation with all staff to 

support colleagues and share good practice. 

 

7. Working Conditions-on occasion we have to deal with long abusive and 

aggressive calls. This is a regular feature of the work. We have significant 

keyboard duties which cause problems both with eyes, back etc. 

 

 Having considered this factor, we recognised that the frequency is 

greater than first anticipated and supported by their manager on points 

raised. This factor has been amended to reflect this change. New factor 

score in working conditions: 2 

 The job evaluation has now increased, however this still sits within the 

2A banding. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



Job Evaluation 

Proposal regarding Locality Managers 

Amendments to the current proposal 

Retain 6 locality managers with 2 based at Pendleton gateway around the modern 

boundaries reflecting growth, needs and deprivation in the areas. The remaining 4 

managers would be located in the existing Gateways at Swinton, Walkden, Eccles 

and Broughton Hub. 

We looked at a number of areas to support this proposal 

Population – Currently in the areas around Pendleton gateway the population has 

been on the increase since 2004 when there were 53,268 residents. In 2014 there 

were 65,426 and it is expected that this will rise to 74,426 by 2021. Media City alone 

is expecting an additional 20,000 people moving in with 15,000 new jobs being 

created.  

Housing - In 2015 there were 27,462 properties within the Pendleton locality, which 

already makes it the area with the highest number of households in the city. This is 

predicted to grow by 4,458 to 31,920 by 2020. A similar level of growth is expected 

between 2020 and 2025. This is going to create unique demands to develop services 

for this growing population, and the current proposal of just one manager overseeing 

this locality in addition to managing the largest centre will be extremely challenging.  

Health, Wellbeing and Poverty - The changing environment and demographics 

bring a new challenge to Salford to provide sufficient and appropriate services for a 

population that, whilst improving overall, still suffers significant deprivation in parts of 

the city. Around 70% of Salford’s population live in areas classified as highly 

deprived and disadvantaged, and around 12,300 children in the city live in poverty. 

Linked with inequalities in deprivation, Salford also faces a number of health 

challenges, both in comparison to national outcomes and within the city itself most 

notably between the east and west of the city. 

Deprivation - The pattern of deprivation in Salford by deprivation type is outlined 

below and all areas show clusters around Pendleton gateway further supporting the 

need for 2 locality managers to be based there. 

 Income deprivation - There are two main clusters of the city that experience 
high income deprivation. These are around Pendleton and Little Hulton.  

 Employment deprivation - The largest cluster of high employment 
deprivation is in concentrated around Pendleton. 

 Health and disability deprivation - Almost all wards of the city experience 
high or relatively high health deprivation, with the biggest cluster in Pendleton, 
followed by Broughton, Orsdall, Weaste & Seedley  

Page 47



 Income deprivation affecting children - There are several parts of the city 
that experience high income deprivation among children, with the main 
concentration being around Pendleton.   

 Income deprivation affecting older people - Income deprivation among 
elderly people is mainly concentrated in Central Salford, Broughton, Irwell 
Riverside, Langworthy and Orsdall.  

 Digital Deprivation – If we can target this and encourage and support the 
digitally excluded then we know this in turn can help residents become better 
off. 
 

Economy - MediaCityUK has changed the face of the city, creating a globally 

important home for creative, digital and media industries and is also home to the 

University of Salford. Current developments include the expansion of MediaCityUK, 

Port Salford, Salford Central, RHS Bridgewater and Greengate. Four of the current 

developments are in the locality closest to Pendleton Gateway creating further 

growth and increased demands for locality managers based there.  

Background 

As part of the proposed Locality Manager role the incumbents will have responsibility 

for locality working. We will be engaging more with the communities/neighbourhoods 

that the Gateways Centres serve, as well as working alongside partners to deliver 

dedicated locality plans. The Locality Managers will have a range of local 

responsibilities and a central part of the role will be to increase Council Tax/NNDR 

collection rates within each area.  

In order for this to work successfully we will need to ensure that the growth areas 

around Pendleton gateway are adequately resourced. 

Within the proposed new structure the Locality Managers will have responsibility for 

the management of more staff than is currently the case, despite there being fewer 

of us. In addition to the existing staff, Locality Managers will also have responsibility 

for 8 Senior Customer Service Officers and 3 additional Locality Team leaders. 

Further staff will be added to the permanent team when the use of the casual bank is 

reviewed.  

The new role will also include responsibility for the Information and Advice areas and 

interview rooms within the Gateways and the hosting of Better Off events, tasks 

which are currently the responsibility of another colleague. 

The Gateways are also earmarked as potential venues for I-working, which as a host 

will create additional responsibilities for Locality Managers. 

None of the Centre Manager’s current tasks and responsibilities have been removed 

from the Locality Manager role profile, and although the new redesign will give us a 

more robust infrastructure, there are many tasks which can only be carried out by 

someone at the Centre Manager/Locality Manager grade. 

Page 48



The largest centre is Pendleton Gateway carrying greater responsibilities for aspects 

such as building maintenance. With a greater number of service providers and 

service users within the centre this also puts a higher demand on the time of the 

Manager based there. 

Information to support 6 Locality Managers 

Under the proposed customer services redesign the 6 Gateway Centre Managers 

roles have been replaced by 5 Locality Managers. However this does not reflect the 

population, needs and growth changes that have and will continue to occur in 

Salford. 

Salford has changed dramatically over recent years. The city’s growth is 

concentrated in specific areas with central and east Salford having the most 

significant changes. These areas are expected to continue to increase. Salford’s last 

council size review was in 2002 and in the fourteen years to 2016 the city’s 

population has grown significantly. The number of people living in the city increased 

from 216,100 to 248,100 over that time period.  This trend is expected to continue. 

The Local Government Boundary Commission for England (LGBCE) is currently 

undertaking a review of Salford’s ward boundaries. The review has arisen as a result 

of these significant population changes in the city.  

As part of this independent consultation process, after considering the matter at full 

Council on 29 August 2018, the council has approved a submission. We have used 

some of the information from this submission along with Indices of deprivation report 

2015 and CCG locality plan August 2017 to support our proposal. 

Our proposal is that we retain 6 managers based around localities and with 

responsibilities that reflect these changes and correspond to boundary proposals in 

the growth area rather than just around the existing buildings. This will equip us to 

support our communities around the new localities rather than a much outdated 

model. Customer services are committed to increasing Council tax and NNDR 

collection. To achieve the best results for the citizens of Salford and increase our 

target collection we will need Locality Managers who are based around the modern 

boundaries reflecting growth, needs and deprivation in the areas. To achieve this 

aim and The Councils Great Eight priorities we need to retain existing numbers and 

locate 2 Locality Managers at Pendleton gateway which is in the heart of the growth 

area. The remaining 4 managers would be located in the existing Gateways at 

Swinton, Walkden, Eccles and Broughton Hub. 

The central and east locality is experiencing a period of considerable transformation 

and growth. The population of the central locality has grown by 30% since the last 

electoral review. The intense and sustained growth in Orsdall/Media City, which is 

anticipated to continue, is also a major consideration. However, some of the inner 

neighbourhoods surrounding the city centre and Pendleton Gateway are 

Page 49



characterised by high levels of deprivation and contribute towards Salford being 

identified as the 16th most deprived local authority in England.  

Many of the new residents have settled in the central part of the city, around the 

regeneration of Salford Quays/Media City. The highest growth has been 

concentrated in wards that adjoin the regional centre and in surrounding areas. 

Ordsall has seen a 168% increase in its population between 2001 and 2016, 

increasing from 6,400 to 18,000 residents. BME communities are higher in certain 

wards, particularly in central Salford.  

Sources of Statistics/information 

Indices of deprivation report 2015 

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/388062/index_of_multiple_deprivation_report_201

5.pdf 

August 2017 CCG locality plan 

http://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n6855.pdf&ver=7581 

Communities and Locality plans 

https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-local-

community/neighbourhood-areas/ 

Response to the Local Government Boundary Commission for  
England’s consultation on Warding Patterns 

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/392687/ward-boundary-subsmission.pdf 

 

 

Under the revised locality model, 5 managers is the appropriate number for the 

5 gateways plus the service manager. The rationale of having 2 managers at 

Pendleton is not something that we are prepared to support on the basis of 

growth and demographics. 

The current staffing levels work on a rota with managers moving around the 

gateways. Under the new arrangements the locality manager will establish 

themselves in each area, there is therefore no longer a need for a 6th manager 

with no location. 

The 5 managers will be further supported by the Service Manager responsible 

for the locality based model in the Gateways 

The majority of growth in the areas referred to fall in to our Digital able 

customers and therefore we wouldn’t expect the increased demand at 

Pendleton Gateway as this traffic would be picked up online. 

Footfall figures at Pendleton Gateway have also been considered, the available 

data doesn’t show a significant increase in number of users. There may be a 

need for more advisors in the future should demand increase but not more 

managers. 

Page 50

https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/388062/index_of_multiple_deprivation_report_2015.pdf
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/388062/index_of_multiple_deprivation_report_2015.pdf
http://www.salfordccg.nhs.uk/download.cfm?doc=docm93jijm4n6855.pdf&ver=7581
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-local-community/neighbourhood-areas/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/people-communities-and-local-information/my-local-community/neighbourhood-areas/
https://www.salford.gov.uk/media/392687/ward-boundary-subsmission.pdf


The proposal is based on what the Managers are doing now this will change in 

new roles/operating model/structure. Locality Managers will be working 

different and not as a Gateway Manager 

There will be an increase of 3 Locality Team Leaders as part of the proposal to 

support the locality managers, 

The Service Manager will be working to a new role profile and will be based 

across Gateway Centres which will provide further additional cover. 

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

 
 

Community Impact Assessment (CIA) 
 

Title of proposal: Project Connect 

Service Group/ Team: Customer Services (Service Reform) 

Date of assessment: 15th November  2018 

Lead CIA Officer: Steven Fry – Head of Service 

Officers in Assessment 
Team: 

 

Review Date: November 2019 

 
The findings of your CIA MUST be included within the report for decision and 
this document attached as evidence of your consideration of potential impact 
on communities. 
 
 

Summary of Community Impact Assessment 
 
 
Brief summary of proposal or what you are impact assessing 
 
Improving collection rates is a council priority and, whilst this proposal is based on 
organisational needs, it assumes a stable operating environment.  
 
With this in mind, the service proposes to disestablish the customer contact centre 
and the advice teams, aligning the resources from these services back into the 
specialist areas of Council Tax, Benefits, Business Rates, Universal Services and 
the Gateways. This will increase specialist domain expertise to the relevant 
departments and allow service managers to deploy employees in a more controlled 
way across customer contact, digital and processing functions whilst creating a new 
locality model.  
 
The current workforce numbers are 205 employees (the equivalent of 181 full time 
equivalents). There are permanent positions for all employees and there is not a 
proposal for any compulsory redundancies. The new proposal means workforce 
numbers will be 194 employees (the equivalent of 176.4 full time equivalents). 
 
Where relevant, all employees will follow a fair recruitment selection criteria. The 
effected employees are unknown at this point but this assessment will be kept 
updated as and when appropriate. 
 
The proposed changes to the service’s structure will provide a robust  
foundation that will give the service the flexibility to respond effectively to a changing 
and challenging environment by building on the expertise and skills of its employees 
and focusing resources into more specialist domains with a larger focus on a locality 
based model. The proposed changes are in line with the principles of the City 
Council’s core values and Mayoral priorities. 

Page 53



2 
 

 
How did you approach the CIA and what did you find? 
 
There are no planned financial cuts as part of this proposal, therefore the Customer 
Service re design was based on improving services in line with the Mayor’s priorities. 
The main focus is to up skill the current workforce to be able to deliver more effective 
services in localities to improve the lives of Salford residents. 
 
 
What are the main areas requiring further attention? 
 
Increased collection rates 
Placed based – locality working 
 
 
Summary of recommendations for improvement 
 

 Disestablish the current structure (whilst maintaining permanent positions for 
all employees) 

 Streamline 47 current job roles into 23 job roles (31 employees will transfer to 
higher graded roles and 3 employees are at risk of transferring into lower 
graded roles) 

 42 temporary arrangements will be consolidated into the new structure  

 To create development opportunities through the apprenticeship levy (detailed 
in the workforce development plan) including 4 new apprenticeship roles 

 
 
 
 

 

Page 54



3 
 

 

1. The proposal 

 
This section should outline details of the proposal. This could include (where 
applicable) 
 

 Description of the current service (policy, procedure, strategy, function) 

 Explanation of the proposal 

 Reason for the proposal 

 Aim or purpose of the proposal 

 Who should benefit from the proposal 

 Who are the key stakeholders 

 What outcomes are required from the proposal 

 Details of other services on which the proposal could impact  

 Social value considerations 
 

  

The current division provides call handling and digital contact functions as well as the 
administration and collection of Council Tax, Benefits, Business rates, Universal 
services and the customer service face-to-face offer within the Gateway network. The 
proposal provides an opportunity for more integrated processing functions along with 
targeted and evidenced based interventions which are locality based and able to more 
readily respond to the support needs of individuals and their families, aligning itself with 
the target operating model. The proposal has been developed and based on the work 
that has been undertaken in Project Connect. At the heart of this redesign has been co-
design with all employees in line with the reform methodology. 
 
On-going employee engagement (detailed below in section 3) has been key to the 
development of this proposal; numerous workshops/observations/121 sessions/team 
meetings have been attended by all employees affected, providing employees with the 
opportunity to engage as much or as little as they wish. Regular meetings have also 
been held with Trade Unions. 
 
The proposal supports the City Mayor’s priorities around tackling poverty and 
inequality, economic development. It also recognises the National Programmes Family 
Hubs model and the Helping Families (Troubled Families) programme. Another of the 
key drivers has been to align the proposed model to complement the 0-25 locality 
model and making sure it is fit for purpose to align with any future placed based models 
across the city. 
 
The current workforce numbers are 205 employees (the equivalent of 181 full time 
equivalents). The new proposal means workforce numbers will be 194 employees (the 
equivalent of 176.4 full time equivalents). A breakdown of the current and proposed 
roles in each individual service area can be found in the consultation report (August 
2018). Structure charts illustrating current and proposed structure are also available. 
 
Any individuals at risk will be notified as part of the consultation process and through 
formal meetings with management and HR. Any individual whose role is at risk will be 
given priority access to all new vacancies. In the event a new role is at a lower grade 
the Employee Assistance scheme will be applied.  
 
 
For the majority of employees it is proposed they will ‘slot in’ or be assimilated into a 

Page 55



4 
 

new role in the service; there are enough permanent roles for all employees. Further 
details can be found in the consultation report (August 2018). Formal consultation start 
on Monday 20th August 2018 with all employees and Trade Unions. The timescale 
proposed is 45 days. All employees will have the opportunity of a 1-2-1 with their 
service manager and Trade Union (where applicable). 
 
A suitable period of time will be left at the end of the consultation period to allow for 
consideration of feedback, including potential equalities impacts.  
 
Those employees affected will be managed in line with the Workforce Change policy 
arrangements. In line with the Council’s approach to creating capacity for those at risk 
of redundancy every effort will be made to identify reasonable suitable alternative 
employment throughout the process. 
 
It is estimated that 9 employees (8 females and 1 male) from the current contact centre 
will increase in grade and 17 employees (12 females and 5 males) from the current 
Revenue and Benefits area will also increase in grade.  
 
5 Locality Manager posts will be created to lead on a locality based Customer Service 
model. The proposal will create roles within a locality setting which will allow 
employees to develop particular areas of focus within a district of the city. 3 additional 
Locality Team Leader posts are being created within this area. The proposal is that 
new Locality Managers will have a fixed location to enable them to establish 
themselves as part of a Locality Leadership Team. As such the proposal would see a 
reduction of 1 manager. (There are currently 6 Gateway Centre Managers – 4 females 
and 2 males). The Gateway Centre Manager displaced will be ring-fenced to one of the 
Team Leader posts across Benefits/Council Tax/Business Rates or Universal.  
 
Suitability interviews will take place for 3 Team Leader posts for 6 female employees at 
risk (3 Contact Centre Operational Managers, 2 Technical Team Leaders, Advice 
Team and 1 Temporary Operational Manager), those individuals not appointed will be 
automatically assimilated to the new role of Locality Team Leader within the Customer 
Services locality model.  
 
All employees will follow a fair recruitment selection criteria. It is not currently known 
who this will effect until suitability interviews have taken place and individuals are 
appointed. This assessment will be kept updated as and when appropriate. 
 
A workforce development plan which includes maximising use of the apprentice levy 
and personal development plans will sit alongside the re-design. This plan will set out 
in detail how the target operating model will be rolled out across the City and how the 
workforce will be supported as part of the roll out. The focus of this will be to make sure 
the workforce have the skills, knowledge, expertise and behaviours to achieve priorities 
and objectives. There is also an opportunity to recruit 4 new apprenticeship posts 
giving further development opportunities. There is already a new leadership team in 
place to start to drive these improvements forward. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



5 
 

 

2. Evidence and research 

 
What equality information (qualitative and quantitative), research or other intelligence 
have you used to develop this proposal? 
 
This can include; equality monitoring information, census data, customer satisfaction 
surveys and feedback, inspection reports, desktop research (local, regional and 
national), professional journals, feedback from individuals and groups. Details of 
information considered when assessing the impact should be published (whilst 
ensuring individual confidentiality). 
 

Information source What has this told you? 

Employee Satisfaction 
Survey – May 2018 
 

Workforce development plan required - progression 
Improved communication. 

 
Employee Workshops (May – 
Aug 2018) 

Provided employees the opportunity to co design and 
feedback for their new role profiles. 

PWC Report - 2016 
 

Independent report providing insight on how to improve 
current services / efficiencies. 

 
Digital Insight - 2016 

Gave overview of digital uptake with Salford residents, 
providing personas. 

 
User acceptance testing 
(UAT) 

Digital products delivered have all been tested with 
residents/users including Salford Shapers (volunteer 
residents group). 

 
 

Page 57



6 
 

 

3. Engagement / Consultation 

 
When considering your proposal, you should be engaging with individuals and groups covering the following protected characteristics 
(You can use evidence from existing consultations if this evidence is relevant to your proposal): 

 

 Age 

 Disability  

 Gender 

 Gender reassignment 

 Marriage and Civil Partnership 

 Pregnancy and maternity 

 Race 

 Religion and belief 

 Sexual orientation 
 

We also advise you to consult people on a low income, carers, ex-offenders, refugees and people seeking asylum, gypsies 
and travellers, where appropriate. 
 
You should detail below your engagement activities (Please note; you must ensure individual confidentiality) 
 

 

Date Area Session Number of 
employees at 
session 
(approx.) 

15.5.18 Universal Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 12 

16.5.18 BR Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 12 

17.5.18 Bens Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 56 

23.5.18 CT Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 42 

24.5.18 Universal Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 12 

P
age 58



7 
 

25.5.18 Bens Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 20 

31.5.18 CT Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 20 

31.5.18 Gways (Mgrs and TL) Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 13 

5.6.18 BR Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 12 

11.6.18 Managers Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 12 

12.6.18 Dev Team Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 7 

14.6.18 Gways (Mgrs and TL) Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 13 

27.6.18 Advice Team Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 9 

2.7.18 Managers Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 12 

12.7.18 Dev Team Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 7 

20.7.18 Gways (CSR) Co Design Workshop – Target Operating Model 8 

26.7.18 Advice Team  Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 9 

1.8.18 Gways (CSR) Co Design Workshop – Role Profiles 8 

7.8.18 All service areas Briefing session 100 

20.8.18 All customer services 
employees 

Start of consultation period (45 days) – 121s 205 

17.10.18 All customer services 
employees 

End of formal consultation  (57 days) – Extended due to 
additional information being submitted by Trade Unions  

205 

13.11.18 All customer services 
employees 

Feedback of formal consultation  205 

27.11.18 Workforce panel Formal approval  

P
age 59



8 
 

 

4. Assessing the impact 

 
From your evidence gathering, you will have identified potential disproportionate negative impacts. Please provide details and 
your actions to overcome these below. We would also like to know if there will be any positive impacts that your proposals will 
make to improve equalities: 

 Potential impact: If the proposal could result in some groups (including customers and/or staff) being disadvantaged or 
treated unfairly 

 Mitigations and actions: Where there is a potential for disadvantage or unfair treatment, what are your plans to 
eliminate, reduce, mitigate or justify it? Could making these changes have a negative effect on any other group(s)? 
Explain why and what you will do about this. You should include details of who will be responsible for the actions and 
target dates for completion:  

 Promoting Equality: Could the proposal result in an opportunity to promote equality or inclusion? Explain how. 
 
Please note: this table will form the basis of your action plan. 

Protected 
characteristic or 
other group 

Potential impact Mitigations and 
actions 

Responsible 
officer 

Target date Promoting equality 

Age  N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
VS/VER may have a 
positive impact, any 
potential issues will be 
identified through 
consultation. 

Steven Fry   

Disability N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 

Steven Fry   

P
age 60



9 
 

Protected 
characteristic or 
other group 

Potential impact Mitigations and 
actions 

Responsible 
officer 

Target date Promoting equality 

recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Gender  N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

Gender 
reassignment 

N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 

Steven Fry   

P
age 61



10 
 

Protected 
characteristic or 
other group 

Potential impact Mitigations and 
actions 

Responsible 
officer 

Target date Promoting equality 

Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Pregnancy and 
maternity 

N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

Race N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

Religion and belief N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

P
age 62



11 
 

Protected 
characteristic or 
other group 

Potential impact Mitigations and 
actions 

Responsible 
officer 

Target date Promoting equality 

Sexual orientation N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

Other groups  N In accordance with 
SCC policies inc; 
Workforce change, 
recruitment & 
selection and 
Employee Assistance. 
Any potential issues 
will be identified 
thorough consultation. 

Steven Fry   

P
age 63



12 
 

 

5. Assessing the impact on community cohesion  

Community cohesion is what must happen in all communities to enable different groups of people to get on well together. A 
key contributor to community cohesion is integration which is what must happen to enable new residents and existing residents 
to adjust to one another. 

An integrated and cohesive community is based on three foundations: 

 People from different backgrounds having similar life opportunities. 
 People knowing their rights and responsibilities. 
 People trusting one another and trusting local institutions to act fairly. 

And three ways of living together: 

 A shared future vision and sense of belonging. 
 A focus on what new and existing communities have in common, alongside a recognition of the value of diversity. 
 Strong and positive relationships between people from different backgrounds. 

Detail below if the proposals is likely to impact on community cohesion, including if there is likely to be a positive impact. 

 
 
The new structure allows for a more flexible and place based approach meaning employees can deliver services in localities. A virtual 
contact centre also allows the service to up skill the workforce to deliver a more efficient service and resolve customer 
enquiries/requests first time and therefore reducing the backlog. The new structure also means there are more inspectors out in 
localities, therefore increasing income. 
 
There is also a digital first approach for residents. The new BetterOff website means we can create a better and fairer Salford, helping 
residents to manage their money better, find advice and apply for jobs. BetterOff will reduce footfall and the need for face to face 
appointments, allowing the team to prioritise their efforts to work with vulnerable claimants who cannot self-serve or need digital 
assistance. It brings money into local economy by helping people access the money they’re entitled to and by supporting them to find 

P
age 64



13 
 

sustainable employment. Running alongside this is the ‘BetterOff Coffee and Chat’ sessions which allows residents to come in and 
speak to advisors face to face if needed. 
 
‘Scan Zones’ located in the localities will allow customers to scan their own documents to speed up the processing of a range of 
services including housing benefits and Council tax. 
 
Other digital solutions including an online Discretionary Housing Payments (DHP) system, text messaging services and Council Tax E-
Billing, again helping to speed up the processing of services and providing a better and more efficient service for the residents of 
Salford. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

P
age 65



14 
 

 
6. Monitoring 
 
You should ensure that any actions within your CIA are monitored and reviewed regularly within Covalent. You should review 
progress on your action plan annually. 

 
7. Review 

 
Your CIA should be reviewed after the proposals have been implemented to review actual impact. You should record an 
appropriate review date below.  

 

Review 
Date 

November 2019 

 
8. Sign off  

 
When you have completed your CIA, it must be signed off by a senior manager within your service group (Assistant Director or 
above).  
 

Name 
 

Signature Date 

 
Steven Fry 

 

19.11.2018 

 
 

When your CIA has been signed off and after the decision has been made, send it to Equalities&Cohesion Team  in Policy and 
Strategy for publishing on the council’s website.  

 
 
 
 

P
age 66

mailto:Equalities&CohesionTeam@salford.gov.uk
http://www.salford.gov.uk/impact-assess.htm


Union Proposal for Customer & Support Service Restructure 

 

Job Profiles & Regrading 

The staff would prefer for the JE evaluations take place immediately. However, 

we welcome the undertaking that all JE's undertaken 6 months after the 

implementation of the new service redesign will be backdated to the 

implementation date. These will be face to face meetings. We also welcome 

the assurance that no one will be downgraded as part of this exercise. 

The following teams have already put forward requests for re-evaluation: 

Benefit Assessors, SENIOR BENEFITS OFFICERS, DEVELOPMENT & QUALITY 

ASSURANCE OFFICER, Senior Council Tax Officers, SENIOR CUSTOMER SERVICES 

OFFICER – LOCALITY, BUSINESS RATES OFFICER & CUSTOMER SERVICES 

OFFICER- UNIVERSAL SERVICES 

We request that all JE reviews put forward by the union will undergo this 

process. 

Locality Management 

The Management have suggested that the reduction from Centre Managers to 

Locality Managers is compensated by the increase in Team Leaders. 

The union’s view is the Locality Managers role significantly widens their role 

within and outside the specific centre with more management responsibilities. 

*Therefore we suggest that 6 Locality Mangers are required but only 7.92(a 

reduction of 2) Locality Team Leaders are required. 

Business Rates 

As we have noted in previous reports this area lacks the necessary 

management structure that is present with Council Tax & Housing Benefit. 

*We would suggest a further 2 Team Leader posts (4A are created with this 

team). This will ensure that decisions can be made effectively to improve 

collection rates. 

Page 67



*These two proposals will remove the need to downgrade any members of 

staff or require any competitive interviews. 

Furthermore we welcome a further Inspector but believe they must be free 

to maximise their time in the field so we can truly start to maximise revenue. 

At this point we are not requesting further staffing but that processing is 

completed by Business Rates Officers.  

Staffing 

Staff side view remains that the structure put forward by management will 

continue to create considerable backlogs, anxiety and stress particularly for the 

most vulnerable, with poor collection rates. We reject the argument that 

increased staffing accompanied by a change in how we work would not make 

significant improvements. When staff refer to better ways of working they are 

frustrated by the mantra of forcing the public to engage with online forms 

rather than deal with the presenting issues.  This approach is having a negative 

effect.  

We believe that such a structure will continue to require the permanent use of 

outside contractors to clear backlogs. This remains unacceptable to our 

members. We continue to request a clear timeline for the withdrawal of 

outside contractors. We do not believe this can be achieved without an 

increase in staffing. 

 

All proposals are highlighted in bold.  

 

Ameen Hadi 

Salford City Unison 

19/11/2018 

Page 68



1

Part 1 - Open to the Public ITEM NO. 

REPORT OF THE ASSISTANT DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES & 
ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT

TO THE WORKFORCE PANEL 

ON 

27th November 2018

TITLE: Employer Supported Volunteering Scheme

RECOMMENDATIONS: 

THAT the content of the Employer Supported Volunteering Scheme for Salford City 
Council be approved for implementation

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY:

Salford’s city wide commitment to volunteering as outlined in the Salford Volunteering 
Strategy demonstrates the importance and impact of volunteering. In light of the City 
Council’s commitment to create a better and fairer Salford with the Great 8, there has 
never been a more opportune time for us to utilise and build on the skills and 
expertise of the our workforce to make a real difference to the communities of 
Salford. 

Volunteering is not only a great way to help others in the community it is a great way 
to share and learn new skills and research also suggests a positive impact on the 
wellbeing and mental health of the volunteer. 

One way to further support the great volunteer work already happening within Salford 
and demonstrate our commitment to the Social Value Alliance 10% better campaign 
is to develop and Employer Supported Volunteer (ESV) Scheme for the City Council.  
The proposal for the scheme centres around ’24 Hours to Make a Difference’ to 
encourage a flexible, skills based approach to volunteering working in partnership 
with Salford CVS. 

The scheme has been co-developed with relevant stakeholders along with a plan for 
launch and implementation. 

Page 69

Agenda Item 5



2

BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS: Salford City Council – Employer Supported 
Volunteering Scheme. 

KEY DECISION: YES / NO

DETAILS:

Background

Launched in June, the Salford Volunteering Strategy demonstrates a city-wide 
commitment recognising the importance and impact of volunteering in Salford. It 
provides a framework of support for individual volunteers as well as organisations 
and groups working with volunteers across our city.

The strategy outlines why the role of volunteering in the city is more crucial than ever 
recognising the contribution volunteers currently make in the city, with approximately 
37,000 volunteers making 2.4 million interventions last year to the benefit of local 
citizens – all worth a £111.2 million contribution to the city’s economy (Salford State 
of the Voluntary Sector 2017 report, Sheffield Hallam University, commissioned by 
Salford CVS).

Over 56% of our workforce are Salford residents which gives us a unique opportunity 
as one of the main employers to contribute to increasing the number of volunteers in 
Salford by 5,000 by 2021.  

In addition, we have the Great eight priorities built on the vision of a better and fairer 
Salford for everyone.  Social value is at the heart of our vision and is the impetus for 
how we design and deliver our services and measure our outcomes. It is important all 
employees understand how their contribution builds social value through their team, 
objectives and service plans. However, there is also an opportunity to help raise 
awareness, understanding and opportunities to add social value and contribute to our 
priorities and vision through volunteering in Salford outside of any formal job role. 

Approach

Building on the Salford Volunteering Strategy, the member policy forum session and 
the previous CMT discussion paper around our commitment as an employer to 
support volunteering, a proposed Employer Supported Volunteering (ESV) scheme 
has been co-produced with the aim of meeting the following objectives:   

10% More 
Volunteers 

by 2021

Increased 
Employee 

Engagement

Social Value 
Alliance 

Campaign : 
10% Better

Being a Good 
Employer

Great Eight 
No. 8 : Social 

Value

Page 70



3

Connect to 
Community

Increased 
Employee 
Wellbeing

Improved 
attraction and 

retention

Improved 
Motivation 
and Morale

Skills 
Building

Development 
Opportunities

More 
Partnership 

Working

Experiential 
Learning

Increased 
Employee 

Confidence

Increased 
Motivation

It was essential that any proposed scheme, launch and implementation plan was co-
produced with relevant stakeholders to ensure this will be fit for purpose. To date 
discussions and feedback have taken place with Elected Members Policy Forum, 
Salford 100 (employee engagement group), representatives from the CVS and the 
Salford Volunteering Strategy Group and Corporate Management Team

A Facilitated Approach

Our proposed employer supported volunteer scheme will work in partnership with 
Salford CVS. Salford CVS is a city-wide infrastructure organisation which represents 
voluntary, community and social enterprise (VCSE) organisations in Salford. They 
provide specialist information, advice, development support and opportunities for 
influence and collaboration within the VCSE sector. They work in partnership with 
Salford City Council in developing the city’s volunteering strategy. 

Salford CVS will work with us to provide an online portal and brokerage service to 
match employees with suitable volunteering opportunities. By working in 
collaboration with Salford CVS we are able to ensure that employees volunteer their 
time with suitable (VCSE) organisations that work within the city or for the benefit of 
Salford citizens. Our partnership with Salford CVS allows us to quality control the 
volunteering activity which is undertaken.

Guiding Principles 

The scheme supports employees to take time out of their normal working week to 
undertake volunteering activity within or for the benefit of Salford.

The guiding principles of the proposed scheme are that the employee takes full 
ownership and responsibility for the arrangements and suitability of the volunteering 
activity. Approval for time off remains at the discretion of the line manager and the 
scheme is clear that time taken to volunteer must not adversely affect the needs of 
the service which will always be the first priority. 

The administration of the scheme will be via an automated approval system on Your 
Zone. This system will record the time off and the activity. It will also require 
employees to report on impact and social value added by way of case studies and 
one page impact statements from their experience. 

It is both the line manager and the employees’ responsibility to ensure the outcomes, 
success and impact of the volunteer activity is captured.

Page 71



4

It is the responsibility of the employee to ensure the organisation they are 
volunteering for has all of the necessary policies, procedures and safe systems of 
work in place. Employees will volunteer at their own risk with no liability to Salford 
City Council or Salford CVS.

There will also be the opportunity for employees to volunteer for community activities 
which are organised and coordinated by Salford City Council, for example Digital 
Champions and Salford Volunteer Rangers. Time off for such activities will also 
supported by this scheme.  

Time off for duties associated with school governance, election duties, support at 
polling stations, trade union activities, Territorial Army Reservists and service in non 
regular armed forces are not covered by this scheme and are covered by other 
arrangements. 

Options for Time Off

Most public sector schemes allow employees to take a set number of days or hours 
off work to volunteer; two to three days appears to be the norm. 

Feedback from stakeholders suggests that flexibility around when the time off can be 
taken is essential in ensuring that the scheme has the biggest impact and meets the 
needs of all stakeholders.  The proposed scheme affords full flexibility around how 
the time off is taken by employees that is, in hours or in days.  Flexibility around how 
the time can be taken will encourage more skills-based, bro-bono volunteering where 
volunteers use their professional skills in a flexible way.  The ability to break down 
the time off into hours may also foster a more long-term commitment to volunteering.  
From a service delivery perspective it may also be easier to approve a request to 
release an employee for shorter periods of time rather than for half or full days. 

Three days equates to 21.6 hours and for branding and marketing purposes it is 
recommended that this is rounded up to “24 hours to make a difference”.

Launch and Implementation

 A Your Zone page will be created as a repository of information for employees 
and managers about the scheme and how it works. 

 A launch event will be planned in conjunction with Salford CVS.

 CMT to reference the launch of the scheme in their respective briefings to 
managers and employees.

 The scheme will be advertised to employees on the desktop and Your Zone 
carousel.

 Posters and flyers will be distributed across campuses.

 HR & OD colleagues will facilitate roll-out to line managers via briefings at 
Heads of Service meetings. 

Page 72



5

 The implementation of the scheme will be supported and evaluated by the 
ESV squad over a period of 12 months. The squad will act as a conduit 
between SCC and CVS to trouble shoot any user issues and will also provide 
support and advice to employees and line managers. The squad will monitor 
and evaluate the uptake and impact of the scheme. They will also work with 
Salford CVS to facilitate an ongoing communication plan. 

Evaluation and Impact

Quantitative data about volunteering activity to be recorded on and reported from the 
SAP system. The number of employees and hours committed to volunteering activity 
will be reported on a quarterly basis to ascertain the performance in relation to the 
10% more target of 300 day. Qualitative information will be captured and measured 
via case studies and impact statements from employees. Salford CVS are also able 
to provide some data on participation via their online portal.

Recommendations 

THAT the content of the Employee Supported Volunteering Scheme for Salford City 
Council be approved for implementation. 

KEY COUNCIL POLICIES: 

EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT AND IMPLICATIONS: 

ASSESSMENT OF RISK: 

LEGAL IMPLICATIONS: Supplied by:  Jeanette Williams, Solicitor, 0161 793 3121

There are no legal implications contained within the report. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: Paul Hutchings, Strategic Finance 
Manager, 0161 793 2574

There are no finance implications contained within the report. 

PROCUREMENT IMPLICATIONS Supplied by: N/A

HR IMPLICATIONS Supplied by:  Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR and OD 
Manager

Page 73



6

Contained within the body of the report.

OTHER DIRECTORATES CONSULTED: 

CONTACT OFFICER:  Catherine Sharples, Strategic HR and OD Manager (ext 
8607)

WARDS TO WHICH REPORT RELATES: 

Page 74



1

24 Hours to Make a Difference

Foreword:

Jim Taylor, Chief Executive Salford City Council and Alison Page, Chief 
Executive of Salford CVS 

Salford’s Volunteering Strategy demonstrates a city-wide commitment to 
the importance and impact of volunteering in Salford. 

Volunteers make a huge difference to Salford – contributing 115,400 
hours and around £104.4 million every year to our city. They touch every 
aspect of people’s lives, provide vital services and care for people, 
animals, wildlife and the environment. Our city would certainly be a far 
poorer place without them. 

But, there is always more to be done – more and more demands, more 
and more need. 

One of our priorities is the making Salford Better Social Value campaign 
– one aim of which is to increase volunteering by 10% which would see 
another 5,000 people giving back to their community by 2021. 

Volunteering is a great way to help others in your community, to meet 
new people, to share your skills and learn new one’s too. Not only is 
volunteering is a major contributor to the region’s economy it is also 
proven to enhance the quality of life of the volunteer - it gives you the 
‘feel good factor’ and can improve your wellbeing and mental health. 

24 Hours to Make a Difference has the power to give something back 
and shape the places we live in.  Our workforce is amongst the greatest 
assets that we have in the city, and now, more than ever, we need to 
mobilise this wealth of talent and time to help our residents and our city.

We’re delighted to launch this scheme to help Salford City Council staff 
make a difference.

The scheme is organic and needs to continue to evolve. We will give it 
time to become established and will be in touch to see how it’s going, to 
continue to build improvements into the scheme.

Page 75



2

“24 Hours to Make a Difference” – Employer Supported Volunteering Scheme

“24 Hours to Make a Difference” is the Council’s contribution to increase volunteering 
activity across Salford. We recognise that many employees are already involved in 
lots of different volunteering activities outside of work time so the the aim of the 
scheme is to further support employees by providing time off work for giving 
something back in Salford. 

Salford’s city wide commitment is outlined in the Salford Volunteering Strategy which 
demonstrates the importance and impact that volunteering can have. In light of the 
City Council’s commitment to create a better and fairer Salford with the Great 8, 
there has never been a more opportune time for us to utilise and build on the skills 
and expertise of our workforce to make a real difference to the communities of 
Salford. 

Volunteering is not only a great way to help others in the community and give 
something back, it is a great way to share and learn new skills as part of your own 
personal and professional development. Research also suggests there can also be a 
real positive impact on the wellbeing and mental health of the volunteer. 

Our employee volunteer scheme works in partnership with Salford CVS. Salford CVS 
is an infrastructure organisation supporting, advising and representing VCSE’s in 
Salford. We will work with Salford CVS to ensure that employees volunteer their time 
with suitable Voluntary, Community or Social Enterprise (VCSE) organisation which 
work within or for the benefit of the city.

There may also be opportunities to volunteer for community projects and other 
activities that are organised or endorsed by Salford City Council and this scheme will 
also apply to those opportunities.

Duties associated with school governance, election duties, support at polling 
stations, trade union activities, Territorial Army Reservists and service in non-regular 
armed forces are not covered by this scheme.

Principles of the scheme 

The scheme allows for up to up to a maximum of 24 hours in a rolling 12 month 
period. The 12 month period starts from your first volunteer session. 

If you do not use your 24 hours during the 12 month period you cannot roll it over 
from one year to the next.

This scheme only supports time off for formal volunteering activity which takes place 
with VCSE’s that are full members of Salford CVS and/or time off to volunteer for 
community events and activities organised or endorsed by Salford City Council.

Page 76



3

Time allowance and eligibility criteria.

The scheme allows for up to 24 hours paid time off per year to volunteer, provided 
that: 

 You have agreed it with your manager before the volunteering activity takes place. 
 Time taken to volunteer will not adversely affect other individuals, teams, business 

activity or service delivery.
 Your volunteering activity takes place with VCSE organisations that are full members 

of Salford CVS and which operate for the benefit of Salford citizens.
 Your volunteering activity takes place supporting community activities and projects 

being organised or endorsed by Salford City Council.
 There are no conflicts of interest with your volunteer activity and the work of the 

Council, e.g political activity or religious campaigning.
 You act in a professional way in line with the Code of Conduct, recognising that you 

are representing the council whilst carrying out the volunteering activities and must 
not do anything that could harm the council’s reputation.  

Identifying a volunteering opportunity.

Salford CVS provide an online portal and brokerage service to help you find and 
arrange a suitable volunteering opportunity in Salford. 

Use the following link to register your interest and find the perfect volunteering 
activity www.salfordcvs.co.uk/want-volunteer.  

There are a wide range of opportunities available but please make sure that the 
organisation you choose to volunteer with is a full member with Salford CVS. If you 
wish to use your time to volunteer for a VCSE organisation that is not a full member, 
please encourage the organisation to register with Salford CVS. It is quick, easy and 
free using this link https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/membership.

If you want to volunteer for other community activities which are organised by Salford 
Council these will be advertised on Your Zone.

How to apply for time off for volunteering.

The scheme supports you to take time out of your normal working week, subject to 
the approval of your line manager, to do volunteering activity. It’s up to you how you 
use your time for volunteering. You can break it down into hours, take it in single 
days or take the full 24 hours at once. 

Any volunteering activity which takes place in your own time cannot be ‘claimed 
back’ under this scheme.

Page 77

http://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/want-volunteer
https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/membership


4

As with any time off work, please consider the council’s needs, your team’s needs 
and your own workload and demands.  Managers are committed to supporting this 
scheme however time off for volunteering will be at your manager’s discretion and 
the council’s business needs and service provision will always take priority. 

Once you have an idea or activity in mind, talk to your manager about it before you 
commit. Explain how you will cover your work, seek your manager’s agreement and 
then complete the “Time to Make a Difference” form on YourZone (link).

Volunteering as a team

If you want to join together as a team or department and use your time off 
collectively with a VCSE organisation then Salford CVS can provide a brokerage 
service to match your team’s interests, skills and availability to a suitable voluntary 
task. They will identify, coordinate and oversee a team activity for you, however 
please note that there is a charge for this service. 

For further details please send your initial enquiry to 
https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/membership for the attention of Claire Roberts.

The small print

Organisations which are members of Salford CVS should have their own health and 
safety, safeguarding and insurance policies. Any out of pocket expenses incurred 
may be reimbursed by the organisation with which you are volunteering; please 
check with them before you start.

Salford City Council and Salford CVS will not be liable for damages or injuries that 
occur while you are undertaking volunteering. It is your responsibility to ensure the 
organisation you are volunteering for have all of the necessary policies, procedures 
and safe systems of work in place before volunteering commences.

Salford City Council’s code of conduct and social media policy apply to employees at 
all times, whether in work or not, and will extend to time spent volunteering under 
this scheme.  

Time for training and to travel to and from your volunteering opportunity will be in 
your own time. 

Happy volunteering 

Useful links
Request Time to Make a Difference form 

Page 78

https://www.salfordcvs.co.uk/membership


5

Code of Conduct
Volunteer Strategy
Salford CVS Website
Special Leave Policy
10% Better campaign
Social Media Policy

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of the Meeting Held on 3 September 2018
	4 Customer Services Redesign
	Appendix 1 (P2)
	Appendix 2
	Appendix_2_current_Structure.vsdx
	Current


	Appendix 3
	Appendix 4
	Appendix 5
	Appendix 6
	Appendix 7

	5 Employer Supported Volunteering
	05 - Scheme


